NOTICE & AGENDA

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)
OF BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED (“COMPANY”) WILIL BE
HELD AT A SHORTER NOTICE ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AT 05:30 PM AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT PROMS, 1ST FLOOR, 3H, 7TH C MAIN
ROAD, 3RD BLOCK, KORAMANGALA, BANGALORE - 560 034 TO TRANSACT THE
FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.  To receive, consider and adopt

(a) the Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the Statement of Profit and
Loss of the Company for the year ended on that date, together with the Auditor’s Report
thereon and the Directors’ Report attached therewith.

(b) The Audited Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the Statement of Profit
and Loss of the Company for the year ended on that date, together with the Auditor’s Report
thereon attached therewith.

2. To consider re-appointment of M/s. BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants, (having Firm
Registration No. 128510W) as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of 5 years and
to fix their remuneration.

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date: September 30, 2022
Place: Bengaluru

HARSH JAIN

Director

DIN: 05321547

ADD.: 1A- 206 Caldra, Divyasree Elan, Sarjapur Road,
Opposite Total Mall, Kaikondahalli, Bengaluru 560035



NOTES:

1.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) and may appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his behalf and the proxy need not be amember of the Company. Proxies
in order to be effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. Except in case of shorter notice which is for a period lesser than 48
hours, in such cases, the instrument appointing proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company forthwith.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
sharcholder.

The Proxy Form is annexed hereto as Annexure 1.

2. The Register of Directors and their sharcholding, maintained u/s 170 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained u/s 189
of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the notice and explanatory
statement, will be available for inspection by the members of the Company at Registered office
of the Company during business hours 10:00 AM. to 06:00 P.M. (except Saturday and Sunday)
up to the date of Annual General Meeting and will also be available during the Annual General
Meeting.

3. Entry to the place of meeting will be regulated by an Attendance Slip which is annexed hereto
as Annexure II to the Notice. Members/Proxies attending the meeting are kindly requested to
complete the enclosed Attendance Slip and affix their signature at the place provided thereon and
hand it over at the entrance.

4. Route map and landmark details for the venue for the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company are as below:



ANNEXURE I TO THE NOTICE

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 103(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companics
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014/

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

Name of the Company: Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Registered office: PROMS 1st Floor, 3H, 7th C Main Road, 3rd Block, Koramangala, Bangalore -
560034

Name of the member (s):
Registered Address:
E-mail Id:
Folio No:
I/'We, being the member(s) of shares of the above-named company, hercby appomt
1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him

3 Name:
Address:
E-mail 1d:
Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the Friday, September 30, 2022 at 05:30 pm at
PROMS 1st Floor, 3H, 7th C Main Road, 3rd Block, Koramangala, Bangalore — 560034 and at
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution For Against

1. To receive, consider and adopt

(a) the Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company for the year ended on that
date, together with the Auditor’s Report thereon and the Directors” Report
attached therewith.

(b) The Audited Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company for the year ended on that
date, together with the Auditor’s Report thercon attached therewith.




To consider re-appointment of M/s. BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants,
(having Firm Registration No. 128510W) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the period of 5 years and to fix their remuneration.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signed this...... dayof........ 2022

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

1.

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting. Except in case of shorter notice which is for a period lesser than 48 hours, in such
cases, the instrument appointing proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company forthwith.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or sharcholder.

A proxy need not be a member of the company.




ANNEXURE II TO THE NOTICE

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Shareholder’s Name:
Registered Folio: No. of shares held
Address:

I/We hereby record my / our presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the
Friday, September 30, 2022 at 05:30 pm at the Registered office of the Company at PROMS, 1st Floor,
3H, 7th C Main Road, 3rd Block, Koramangala, Bangalore — 560 034

Signature of Shareholder / Proxy*

*Strike out whichever is not applicable.

Note:

1. Please complete this slip and handover at the entrance of the Meeting hall.
2. Members are requested to bring their copies of this Notice to the meeting.
3. A member may vote cither for or against each resolution.



BILLIONBRAINS

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
PROMS 1 ST Floor, 3H, 7th C Main Road, 3rd Block, Koramangala, Bangalore 560034
CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343

To,
The Members,

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (‘Company”)

Your Directors have the pleasure of presenting Fourth Annual Report together with Audited Financial

BOARD’S REPORT

Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Standalone Consolidated
Particulars As at March *As at March As at March 31, | *As at March
31,2022 31,2021 2022 31,2021

Revenue from 13,204 1,584 35,092 2,951
Operations

Other Income 5,361 858 7,627 25,403

Total Revenue 18,564 2,442 42,719 28,354

Less: Total Expenses 42,655 10,297 66,366 11,735

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (24,090) (7.855) (23,647) 16,619

Add/(Less): Tax Expense - @) 254 (65)

(24,090) (7,854) (23,901) 16,765

Profit/(Loss) after Taxes

* Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

2.  STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The Company operates web and app-based technology platform ‘Groww’. It provides a tech platform for a

bouquet of financial products to its subsidiaries & group companies.

3.  CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There has been no change in business during the year under review.

4. DIVIDEND:

The Board does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2021-2022

S.  RESERVES:

The Company has not transferred any amount to Statutory Reserves, for the financial year 2021-22




6. DETAILS REGARDING SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND
JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

As on March 31, 2022, your Company has five subsidiaries viz; Nextbillion Technology Private Limited,
Groww Serv Private Limited (Formerly known as Billionbrains Capital Private Limited), Neobillion Fintech
Private Limited, Billionblocks Finserv Private Limited, and Groww Pay Services Private Limited.

The Company does not have any Associate or Joint Venture Company.

Pursuant to Rule 8(1) of the Companies Accounts Rules, 2014, a separate section reporting on highlights of
performance and its contribution to overall performance of the Company is disclosed in Annexure I.

Pursuant to the first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, Form AOC 1 is attached with the financials.

7. HOLDING COMPANY:

Groww Inc., USA continues to be the Holding Company with 99.99% stake in the Company.

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the
end of financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report.

9. SHARE CAPITAL:

As on March 31, 2022, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of your Company stood at Rs.
11,16,394/- (Rupees Eleven Lakhs Sixteen Thousand Three Hundred Ninety-Four only), comprising of
11,16,394 (Rupees Eleven Lakhs Sixteen Thousand Three Hundred Ninety-Four) Equity shares of Re. 1/-
(Rupee One only) each.

During the year under review, your company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 12,00,000/-
(Rupees Twelve Lakhs only) divided into 12,00,000 (Twelve Lakhs) Equity Shares of Re. 1 (Rupee One only)
each to Rs. 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore only) divided into 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Equity Shares of Re.
1 (Rupee One only) each.

During the year under review, your Company has allotted 1,24,152 (One Lakh Twenty-Four Thousand One
Hundred and Fifty-Two) Equity Shares of Re. 1 (Rupees One Only) each at premium of Rs. 1,50,991.96
(Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-One and Ninety-Six Paise only) per share.

The Company has neither issued shares with differential voting rights or sweat equity or Bonus Shares. Further,
the Company has not bought back any of its securities.



10. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The Constitution of the Board remained unchanged during the year under review.

The status of the Company being a Private Limited Company, the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013 relating to Key Managerial Personnel are not applicable to the Company.

11. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD:

During the financial year under review, the Company had 7 (Seven) Board meetings on 16-06-2021, 28-09-
2021, 14-10-2021, 21-10-2021, 15-11-2021 15-02-2022 and 24-03-2022. Both Directors were present at all
the meetings held.

12. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants, (having FRN: 128510W) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company for financial year 2021-22, in order to fill the casual vacancy caused due to the resignation of
the auditors, M/s. Vasanth & Co.

M/s. BSR & Co., Chartered Accountants, (having FRN: 128510W) the Statutory Auditors of the Company
retire at the ensuring Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment for the
term of five years from the Financial Year 2022-23 to 2026-2027 i.e. from conclusion of ensuring Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027.

13. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED / UNPAID AMOUNT TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

Y our Company did not have any funds as contemplated under Section 125 of the Act lying unpaid or unclaimed
for a period of seven years. Therefore, there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

14. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE
REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORTS:

The comments by the auditors in their report read along with information and explanation given in notes to
accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for further explanation.

15. INSTANCES OF FRAUD, IF ANY REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS:

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013,



16. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) has been set up and trained to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The company conducts
regular refreshers trainings for all employees and new joiners in compliance with the Act. There was no case
reported under the Act during the financial year under review.

17. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate
events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. The Company has laid down a Risk Assessment and
Minimization Procedure. These procedures are reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risk
through means of a properly defined framework. The common risks inter alia are: Competition, Business risk,
Technology obsolescence, Statutory compliance, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. Business risk,
inter-alia, further includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. These risks are assessed and
steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.

18. DETAILS ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

1. Conservation of energy

The operations of the Company, being financial services, require normal consumption of electricity. The
Company is taking every necessary step to reduce its consumption of energy.

2. Technology absorption

The Company is continuously making efforts for induction of innovative technologies and techniques required
for the business activities.

(1) the efforts made towards technology absorption : Nil

(i1) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:
Nil

(iii) Technology imported: Nil



3. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the year is as follows:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Foreign exchange earnings Nil
Foreign exchange Outgo 80,354,744

19. DEPOSITS:

During the year under report, your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits pursuant to Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Hence, disclosures as required pursuant to Rule 8(5)(v) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 are not applicable for the financial year under review.

20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS OR GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The details of loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year under review are disclosed under respective notes / schedules in the financial
statements.

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the
ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the company with
related parties which may have potential conflict with interest of the company at large.

The particulars of material contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are attached herewith in Annexure II in Form No. AOC 2.

22. MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATOR/COURT:

During the year under review, there is no significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

23. DISCLOSURE OF MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.

24. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company complies with all the applicable Secretarial Standards, issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.



25. FINANCE AND SHARE CAPITAL:

i. Issue of Equity Shares with Differential Voting Rights:
The Company has not issued equity shares with differential voting rights during the year, and hence the
disclosure requirements in this connection will not apply to the Company.

ii. Issue of Sweat Equity Shares:
The Company has not issued sweat equity shares during the year, and hence the disclosure requirements in this

connection will not apply to the Company.

iii. Issue of Stock Options:
The Company has not issued employee stock options during the year.

26. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to the requirement of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

i.  thatin the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii.  that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2022 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended
on March 31, 2022.

iii.  that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv.  that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v.  that the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

27. APPLICATIONS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

There were no applications made by the Company or upon the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 during the year under review. There are no proceedings pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 by / against the Company as on March 31, 2022.

28. THE DETAILS OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT, IF ANY

During the year under review, there were no settlements made by the Company for any loan / borrowing taken
from the Banks or Financial Institutions and hence no comment with regard to the details of difference between
amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from
the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof.



29. ANNUAL RETURN:

The Company shall place its Annual Return on the website i.e. www.groww.in of the Company as required
under Section 92 read with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 in a due course of time.

30. DISCLOSURES:

The Company being a Private Limited Company, is not required to comply with the clauses or provisions
under Companies Act, 2013 such as 1) Appointment of Independent Director (Section 149); 2) Formation of
Audit Committee (Section. 177); 3) Formation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Section 178); 4)
Undertaking formal Annual Evaluation of the Board and that of its Committees and the Individual Director
(Section 134); 5) Undertaking Secretarial Audit (Section 204); 6) Statement in respect of adequacy of internal
financial control with reference to the financial statements (Section 134); 7) Disclosure under section 197(12)
with regard to managerial and employee remuneration; 8) The Company is not covered under section 135
(Corporate Social Responsibility).

31. COMPLIANCES UNDER FEMA:

The Company has in place the system of ensuring compliance with applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and rules made thereunder and for certification from the Statutory Auditor of the
Company on an annual basis.

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the Customers, Employees, Suppliers,
Professionals, and Bankers to the Company for their Cooperation and contribution in the affairs of the
Company.

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

fulob \AM}W

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
LALIT KESHRE HARSH JAIN
DIN: 02483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Bangalore
Date: September 30, 2022



Annexure I
STATEMENT CONTAINING HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES
IASSOCIATE-COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES

Name of the Subsidiary Subsidiary | Subsidiary | Subsidiary | Subsidiary
Subsidiary /
Asseeinte-LJV Nextbillion Neobillion | Billionblocks Groww Groww Pay
Technology Fintech Finserv Serv Services
Private Private Private Private Private
Limited (Rs.) Limited Limited Limited Limited
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Share capital 6,62,54,650 |  99.86,057 |  20,10,000 | 2,25,00,000 | 6.,00.40,000
Reseries & 5,099,765,146 | 485,158,236 1,940,429 144,904 | 206,796,176
surplus
Total assets 17,997,898,294 | 507,936,759 8,175,416 | 23,645,592 | 310,752,944
Total Liabilities | 12,831,750,734 | 12,792,466 | 4,224,987 | 1,000,689 | 43.916.768
Investments 399,235,541 - - - -
Turnover 3,688,287,653 | 17,275,014 - 864,194 | 13,190,636
LECHRESIONE 93,365,012 | (5,102,852) | (10,634,106) | (271,222) | (33,203.824)
taxation
Provision for 25,313,327 (4,028) - 80,176 -
taxation
Profitafter 68,051,685 | (5,098,824) | (10,634,106) | (351,398) | (33,203,824)
taxation
Proposed
Dividend i ) i i i
% of shareholding 96.21% 99.99% 99.99%, 99.99% 100%

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTOR

LALIT KESHRE
DIN: 02483558

Place: Bangalore
Date: September 30, 2022

o
DIRECTOR

HARSH JAIN
DIN: 05321547




(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

Annexure II
Form AOC-2

2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third
proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

There were no related party transactions which are not at arm’s length.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

In Rs

()

Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

Nextbillion Technology
Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Groww Pay Services
Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

(b)

Nature of contracts
transactions

/ arrangements /

Tech Platform Service

Tech Platform Service

arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

Transaction at arm’s length

Rs. 124,60,97,578/-

(c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / | Continuous Ongoing Continuous Ongoing
transactions Transactions Transactions
(d)| Salient terms of the contracts or | Ordinary Business Ordinary Business

Transaction at arm’s length

Rs. 3,76,78,595/-

(e)

Date(s) of approval by the Board

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

(U]

Amount paid as advances, if any:

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

FOR BILLIONBRAINS GARAGE VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED

st

DIRECTOR
LALIT KESHRE
DIN: 02483558

Place: Bangalore
Date: September 30, 2022

A

o7

DIRECTOR
HARSH JAIN
DIN: 05321547




BILLIONBRAINS

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Proms Complex 7th C Main Rd, Koramangala 1A Block, SBI Colony, Koramangala,
Bengaluru, Karnataka 560034

CIN: U72900KA2018FTC 109343

FORM AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate

companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounis in Rs.)

Sl No. 1 2 3 4 5

Name of the subsidiary | Nextbillion Neobillion Billionblocks | Groww Serv | Groww Pay
Technology Fintech Finserv Private Services
Private Private Private Limited Private
Limited Limited Limited Limited

The date since when the 18-03-2021 12-02-2020 27-06-2020 03-06-2021 26-10-2021

subsidiary was acquired

Reporting period for N.A, N.A. NA. N.A. | 02-07-2021 to

the subsidiary 31-03-2022

concerned, if different

from the holding -

company’s reporting

period

Reporting currency and N.A, N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Exchange rate as on the

last date of the relevant

financial year in the

case of foreign

subsidiary

Share eapital 6,62,54,650 99,86,057 20,10,000 2,25,00,000 6,00,40,000

Reserves & surpius 5,099,765,146 | 485,158,236 1,940,429 144,904 | 206,796,176

Total assets 17,997,898,294 507,936,759 8,175,416 23,645,592 | 310,752,944

Total Liabilities 12,831,750,734 12,792,466 4,224,987 1,000,689 43,916,768

Investments 399,235,541 - - - -

Turnover 3,688,287,653 17,275,014 - 864,194 13,190,636

Profit before taxation 93,365,012 (5,102,852) | (10,634,106) (271,222) | (33,203,824)

Provision for taxation 25,313,327 (4,028) - 80,176 -

Profit after taxation 68,051,685 (5,098,824) | (10,634,106) (351,398) (33,203,824)

Proposed Dividend - - - - -

% of shareholding 96.21% 99.99% 99.99% 99.99% 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:




1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Billionblocks Finserv Private
Limited

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N.A.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures: NOT APPLICABLE

For Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

A B

Director Director
Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain
DIN: 62483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Bangalore
Dated: September 30, 2022



BSRandCo
Chartered Accountants

Embassy Golf Links Business Park, Telephana: + 91 B0 4602 3000
Pebble Beach, B Block, 3™ Floor, No. 13/2, Fax;: + 91 B0 4682 3999
Off Intermediate Ring Road,

Bengaluru-580 071 India

Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
(the "“Company") which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in
equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confarmity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and
other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors' report, but does not include
the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Ouwr opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial staternents or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and

W Princpal Office
14th Flogr, Caeniral B Wing and Norh C 'Wing, Mescs [T Park 4, Mesco Canler,

Wastam Exprads Highway, Gomngacn (Easf), Mumixi - 400083
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cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’'s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

*  Obfain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future evenls or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
CONCEern.

* Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
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and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter(s)

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2020 included in these standalone financial statements, are
based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor whose reports for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 dated 28 September 2021 and 6 August 2020 respectively
expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial statements, as adjusted for the differences
in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited
by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
stalement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. The Company has been exempted from the requirement of its auditor reporting on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such confrols (clause (i) of Section 143(3)).

B. Wilh respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i} The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
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the Mote 30 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™ or

*  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i} The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Mote 30 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

*  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

ForB S R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:128510W

e B

Ashish Chadha

Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 500160
Date: 17 June 2022 ICAl UDIN:22500160ALCUZPE307
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

(i) (b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(i) (a)

(b)

(iiiy

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of 3 years. In accordance with this programme, certain property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Mo discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering technology platform
services. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3{ii)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii){b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has made
investments in companies, in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The
Company has not made any investments in firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties.

The Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity. Accordingly clause 3{iii)(a) of the Order is
not applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. There are no guarantees provided, security given
during the year.

The Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly,
clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable,

The Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly,
clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vil) (a)

(b)

(wiii)

(ix} (a)

(b)

(c)

The Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly,
clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans. Accordingly,
clause 3iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Walue added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues have been
regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities, though there have been
slight delays in a few cases of Provident Fund. As explained to us, the Company did not have
any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order iz not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

(d)
(e}
(f
(x] (a)
(b)
(xi) (a)
(b)
(c)

(i}

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)
(b)
(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

>

has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised funds on short term basis which have been utilised for long term
puUrposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as
defined under the Act,

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit,

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an Internal Audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
Section 138 of the Act,

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
Section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3({xiv){b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable,

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
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Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the year
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(c)

(d)

{=vii)

{xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 23,971.71 lakhs in the current financial year and
Rs. 7,760.58 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have duly taken
into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBS R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:128510W

Ao s —

Ashish Chadha
Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 500160
Date: 17 June 2022 ICAI UDIN:22500160ALCUZPB907
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

(AN cromnseents are i INR Lallhs wnless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As al As at As at
3 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Pragerty, plant and equipment 3 R4 383 a1
Financial assets
1. Investments in subsidiaries 4 61,180 26,778 +
1. Investments in associates 4 - - 1,513
iii. Chher fimancial assets [ 135,874 4,247 25
Total non-current assets 197,918 d1.410 1,629
Current asseds
Financial assets
i. Investments 5 23980 3,509 3,800
il.  Trade receivables & 14,080 k] [LEi]
iil. Cash and cash equivalents TA 2305 2,752 9,132
iv. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents B 10,504 42 813 63
v. Diher financial assets 8 3,160 Al 332
Current tax psset (net) 20 923 103 30
Other current assets Ll 7 590 31477 472
Total current asseis 61544 54,250 13,929
Total asscts 260,462 B5,660 15,558
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capatal 10 ) 11 10 7
Other equity i 246,506 #3,149 14,580
Total equity 246,517 83,159 14,596
LIABILITIES
Non-current linbilities
Provisions 13 202 T8 k1]
Deferred tax liabilities (Met) 0 ¥ 2 I
Total non-current liabilitics 202 Th 37
Current liabilities
Fimancial lisbilities
Trade payables
i. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 12 | 2 -
enferpnses
i Total owtstanding dues of creditors other than micro 12 12,337 2374 §a2
enterprises and small emerprises
Provisions 13 1] 4 -
Chher current lishilines 14 1,304 145 ik}
13,743 2425 915
13,945 21501 962
Total equity amd liabilities 260,462 B5, 60 15,558

Significant accounting policies

2

The accompanying notes form an integral pant of these standalons financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for B S R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 1285 10W

A

Ashish Chadha
Partner
Membership Mo. 500160

Place: Bengaluru
Drate: June 17, 2022

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Billiznbrains Gurage Ventures Private Limited

CIM: U72000KA2018FTCI09343

Lalit Keshre
Director
DM 2483558

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 17, 2022

h Jain
Director
DM 05321347

Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 17, 2022
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Rillionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Standalone Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(AN amonnts are in INR Lokhs unless atherwise stated)

For the vear ended

For the year ended

Particul v

s ot 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations 13 13,204 1,584
Cither income 16 5,361 R38R
Total income 18,565 2442
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 17 16,181 in3s
Depreciation 18 27 105
Other expenses 19 26,195 6,557
Total expenses 42,655 10,297
Loss before income fax (24,090) [T855)
Tax expense
Current tax 20 - -
Deferred tax 20 - (1]
Total tax expense - (1)
Loss for the vear {24,090 (7.854)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans (13) 5
[ncome tax relating 1o above b &
Other comprehensive income / {loss), net of tax (13) 5
Total comprehensive loss for the vear (24,103) (7.849)
Earnings per equity share in INR (Face value: INR 1= per share) 25
Basic (2,301.34) (98749
Diluted (230034 (987.49)
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
Jor BS Rand Co Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chanered Accountants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Firm Registration No: 1285 10W CIN: U72900K A2018FTC 109343 ~

Aadrs

M

Ashish Chadlia Lalit Keshre
Partner Drirector
Membership Mo, 300160 DN 2453558
Place: Bengaluru Mace: Bengalur

Date: June 17, 2022 Date: June 17,2022

Harsh Jain
Direcior
DIN: 05321547

Place: Bengalury
Date: June 17, 2022



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Standalone Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounis are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Amount (Rs)

As at 1 April 2020 =
Issue of equity shares 3
As at 31 March 2021 10
Issue of equity shares 1
As at 31 March 2022 11
B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus

YaiEaan Securities Premium Retained earnings Total
As at 1 April 2020 18,093 (3.504) 14,589
Loss for the year - (7.854) {7.854)
Other comprehensive income - 5 3
Securilies premium on issue of equity shares Th, 409 - Th, 409
As at 31 March 2021 94,502 (11,353) 83,149
Loss for the year - (24,090) (24,090}
Other comprehensive income - {13} (13)
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 187 460 - 187 460
As at 31 March 2022 251,962 {35,456) 246,506

Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone Anancial statements
As per our report ol even date attached
Jor BS Rand Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 128510W

Sfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
CIN: UT2900KA2018FTC109343

Ashish Chadha Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 300160 DIN: 2483558 DIN: 05321547

Place: Bengaluru
Date: Tune 17, 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 17, 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 17, 2022



Hillionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Standalone Statement of cash flows for the venr ended 31 March 2022

(AN cmennts are i INR Lakhs unless ofierwise stated)

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

Faor the year ended
31 March 2021

Cash flow fram sperating activities
Loss before income tax

Adjustments:

Interest Incorme on tenm deposils

Interest om unwinding of commercial paper
Met gain on fivir value changes
Depreciation

Provision for loss allowance

Share based payments

Operating cash Now before working eapital changes

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase Vdecrease in trade receivables
(Increase Vdecrease in other financial assers
{Increase Vdecrease in other current assets
Increase({decrease) in trade payables
Increase/{decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase{decrease] in provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid, net of refumd

Net cash used in operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Iwestment in subsidiary

Irvestment in nvutual fund

Proceeds from sale of mutual fumd
[westment in commercial paper

Bank deposit placed

Proceeds from bank deposits

Interest received

Met cash wsed in investing activities (B)

Cash fMows from Mnancing activities
Proceeds frem issue of equity shares
Net cosh from financing activities ()

Nel decrease in cosh and cash equivalents (A + B +C)
Cash aml cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear

[2d,0r0) (7, 855)
{4,420} (7763
[204)
(735) (81}
7 105
0 £
G613 255
(22, 487) (8,352)
(13,119 (B93)
(3.9407 674)
(4,150 (3.005)
3450 1161
1,250 B2
[l 49
(38.876) 11,634y
(820} [74)
(39,696} (10,708}
[758) (3949)
{34,402) {25,265)
(127 800y (3,509)
115,268 3881
(7,000) :
[1dB 220} (79.439)
48105 32470
5 604 1,177
(148,212 {71,084
187,461 6,412
18T, 461 Tadll
(#H70 (6.380)
2,752 9,132
2,305 2,752
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Standalone Statement of cash flows for the vear ended 31 March 2022

CAI cunannts are i INR akhs anless edherwise stited)

For the vear ended For the vear ended

Particulars

31 Muarch 2022 31 March 2021
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprize of
Cash on hand 2 2
Balances with banks in current accounts 2,305 2,750
Total eash amd cash equivalents (Refer Note TA) 1,305 2,752

MNotes:
The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect method™ as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS.7) Statement of Cash Flows.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone fAnancial statements

As per our repon of even date

S BS R amd Co ferr and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accoumants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited s
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Ashish Chadha Lalit Keshre arsh Jain

Pariner Director Drirector

Membership Mo, 300160 DIM: 2483558 DM D5321547

Place: Bengalwru Place: Bengalur Place: Bengaluru

Diate: Jume 17, 2022 Drade: June 17, 2022 Dhate: June 17, 2022



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(AN gty are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Infornation

Billionbrains Garnge Ventures Private Limited (‘the Company®) was incorporaied as a private limited company on 9th January 2018 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2003, Billwnbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited is a subsidiany of M/s. Groww Inc, Delaware, United States of America,

Billionbrains Garge Ventures Private Limited is primarily engaged in carrying out the business of software designing, maintenance, testing and benchmarking,
designing, developing computer software and solutions, carry on the business of providing, building, organizing of software teols, marketing and innovatization of
licensed software, consultancy services. The company operates the web & app based technology platform, “Groww™.

1. Significant accounting policics

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspeets with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the *Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevani provisions of the Act.

Previous period numbers in the financial statements have been restated to Ind AS. In accordance with Tnd AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standard, the Company has presented a reconciliation from the presentation of the financial statements under Accounting Standards notified under the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous GAAF”) 1o Ind AS of Sharcholders” equity a3 a1 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2020 being the transition date and of the
tetal comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021

These financial stemens have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements as notified under the Companies { Indian
Accounting Standards) Rubes, 2005 read with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures are presented m the format preseribed under Division 111 of
Schedule L1 of the companies Act, as amended from time to time that are required 1o comply with Ind AS. The Statement of Caish Flows has been presented as per
the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and liahilities, defined
benefit plan linbilities and share-based payments being measured at fair value

Avcounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adepled or a revision to an existing accoasnting
standurd requires a change in the accounting palicy hitherto in use. These financial statements are the Company’s first Ind AS financial stvtements. The Company’s
financial stalements are presented in Indian Rupees (INRViRz }, which s also its functional currency and all values are rounded to the nerest lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 are being autherized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 17 June 2002,

The principal accounting pelicies applicd in the prepasation of the financial ststements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
vears presented, unless otherwise stated




Billisnbrains Gurage YVentures Private Limited
MNotes to the Standalone financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(AN amaewits aere an INR Lakhs yless otherwise stated)
1, Significant accounting policies (Continued )

4. Property, plant and equipment

L Recagnition and measwrenment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s CAarTying arnount

ltems of property, plant and equipment are instially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met, and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized
anly when it is probable that fiture economic benefit associated with these will flow with the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress are property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended wse. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets
outstanding at each reporting dite are shown as other non-financial assets. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in progress until construction and installation
15 completed and assets are ready for s intended use.

Items of Property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stabed at the lower of their net book valse or net realisable
vitlue and are shown separately in the financial statzments, il any,

fi.  Depracintion

Depreciation provided on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis ichanged from writien down value basis followed in earlier financial
years) using the rates asived at based on the useful hves specified in Schedule 11 of the Act,

The estimated wseful lives of items of propenty, plant and equipment For the current and comparative periods are as follows

Asset Usciul life
Computers, Laptops and Penipherals 3 years
Furnitures & Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years

Metworking equipments fi years

Depreciation is provided on a straight ling basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use, In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up fo the date
of disposal. The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed ot the end of each financial year
and changes if any, are accounted for on a prospective basis

il De-recagnition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Gains or Insses arising from de-recognition, disposal gr retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised net, within “Ceher Income™ or “Other Expenses”, as the case maybe, in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the year of derecognition, disposal or retirement




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(AN comeerants ave o ANE Lokls wnless otherwive stated)

1, Significant accounting policies (Continued )

b, Intangible nssets

i Recognition and mensurement

Am intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future cconomic benefits that are antributable to it
will flow o the Company. Intangible assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost attributable 1o readying the asset for use. Such intangible assets are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumuilated impairment losses. The useful life of these intangible assets is estimated at 3 years
with zero residual value. Any expenses on such software for support and maintenance payable annually are charged to the statement of profit and loss

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on imitial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried al cost less accumulated
amorization.

i, Anvwertisation

Amortisation is provided using the straight-line method on the cost of intangible assets ever their estimated useful lives and is incleded in the statement of profit and
loss,

. Revenue feom Contracts with customers

Revenue {other than for those items to which Ind AS 104 Financial [nstruments are applicable) is measured &t fair value of the consideration received or receivable
Ind A5 115, Revenue from contracts with customers, outlines a single compeehensive model of accounting for revenue asising from contracts with customers and
supersades current revenuz recognition guidance found within Ind ASs of accounting on acerual basis. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange

for those poods or services. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangement because it typically controls the goxls or services before
transferring them to the customer.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model a5 g2t out in Ind AS 115

Step L: Identify contract(s} with & customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more partics that ereates enforceable rights and obligations and
sets out the critena for every contract that must be met.

Step I Idemify perfermance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer 1o transfer a good or service 1o the
customer.

Step 3 Determing the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services W a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties

Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations i the contract: For a contract that has msore than one performance obligation, the Company
allocates the transaction price 1o each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for satisfying cach performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company recognises revenue from the following sources

() Income from tech platform services i recognised upon completion of services, in accordance with the terms of contract,

(b Interest income i3 recognized using the effective interest rate method,

() Advances received from customers in respect of contracts ane treated as liabilities and adjested against billing as per terms of the contract.




Eillionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(AN amomis are in INE Lakls wnless avherwise stated)
2, Significant accounting policies (Continued)

il. Financial Instruments

L Date af Recogmnition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contraciual provisions of the
Instrument %

i, Initial Measurentent

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date, ie. the date that the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Recognised financial instruments are initially measured ai fair value, Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial libilities are added 1o or deducted from the fair value of the Anancial assets or
financial liabilitics, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of fnancial assets or financial lishilities at Bir
vitlue through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss

i, Classificarion and Subsequent Mensurement
Ao Financlal asvets

Based on the business model, the contractual charscteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where appropriate, the Company classifies and measures
financial assets in the following categories -

a) Amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost il it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPLY

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash flows ('Asset held to collect contraciual cash flows'); and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SFFI on the principal

amount outstanding.
After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held 1o collest contractual cash flows and SPP1, such financial assets are
subsequently measured a1 amortised cost using effective interest rte {"EIR') method. Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in profit or boss.
Interest income from these financial assels is included in finance income using the EIR method. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or
loss
The EIR methed is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flows (including all Fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expecied life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net camying amount on initial recopnition,

b} Fair value through other comprebensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective 15 both to collect the
contractual cash Mlows and o sell the assets, {'Contractual eash Nows of assets collected through held and sell model) and contraciual cash flows that are SPPI, are
subsequently measured at FVOCL Movements in the canrying amount of such financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income ("OCT™), except
interest  dividend income which is recognised in profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OCT are subsequently transferred 1o the statement of profit and loss in case of
debt instruments however, in case of equity instruments it will be direcily transferred 1o reserves, Equity insiruments a3 FVOC] are not subject to an impairment
AsSEEsMEnt. g

¢) Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL): Financial assets, which do not mect the criteria for categonsation as at amortised cost or as FVOC] or either
designated, are measured o FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. The Company records investments in equity instruments and
mutual funds at FVTPL.




Billionbrains Garage Yentures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(AN cwreonents aee in INK Laths waless atherwise sfated)
2, Significant accounting policies (Continued)

B, Financial Nabilites
Dbt and equity mstruments issued by the Company are classified as either finoncial linhilities or as equity in sccordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the defintions of a financial liability and an equity instrument

{n) Equity Instrument - An equity instrument is any contract that evidences o residual interest in the assets of an entity afier deducting all of its labilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds received, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

(b} Financial Liabilities Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrying ameunts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
determined based on the EIR method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recogmition of financial liabilities is also recognized
in profit or loss. The Company does not have any financial liability which are measwred at FVTPL.

A fair value measurement of & non-financial asset takes into account a markel participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
hest wse or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. [n nfder 10 show how fair values have been derived, financial
instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 12 Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or linbilities that the Company has sccess
to ab the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient wrading activities with regards 1o the volume and liquidity of the
wdentical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercizable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 ¢ Those where the inputs that are used for valwation and ore significant, are derived from directly or indirectly ohservable market data available over the
entire period of the instrument”s life.

Level 3 : Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole,

Based on the Company's business model for managing the investments, the Company has clussified its investments and securities for trade a1 FVYTPL. Investment in
subsidiarics is camicd at deemed cost (previous GAAP carmying amount) as per Ind AS 27

Financial liabilities are camed at amortised cost using the effective interest rale method. For trade and other payables, the carrving amount approximates the fair
vlue due to short maturity of these instrurments

v, Reclassification:
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 1o their initinl recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates o business line or in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. Financial liabilities ane not reclassified

v, Derecagnition:
{AD A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assel or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
* The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or
* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
of the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

[F the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recogmises its relained interest in the asset and an associated linbility for the amount it may have to pay,

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carmying amount of the asset (o1 the camying amount allocated 1o the portion of the asset
derceognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration received {including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (it} any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in OCH iz recogmsed in profit or loss (except for equity instruments measured w1 FYOCT),

(B) A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially diffesent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated a3 a derecognition of the onginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case. » new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the new financial linbility with modified terms is
recognised in profit or loss.

vi. (fsening:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently Tas a legally
enforceable rght o set off the amounts and it intends either to setike them on a net basis or to realise the asset and setile the liability simultaneously




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

CAN amoemis are in INR Lakhs wless otherwise stated)
2, Significant accounting policies (Continued )
WL Tmpiefrnnent of financial assets:

A, Trode receivables
The Company applies the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to measuring expecied credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for all trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company o frack changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs ot each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
To measure the expected credit losses, wrade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates
are based on average of historical loss mte adjusted to reflect cument and available forward looking infermation affecting the ability of the customers 1o settle the
receivables.

B, Oither Fimancial Assefs
For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition 17 credit sk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used I in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL

Lifie time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events ever the expected life of a financial instrument, The 12 month ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months afier the vear end.

ECL is the difference between all contraciual cash Mows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash Aows that the entily expects to
receive (ie. all shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required 10 consider all comtractual terms of the financial
instrument {including prepayment, extension ele.) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannol be estimated reliobly, then the entity is required 1o use the remaiming contractual term of the Arancial instrument.

ECL impatrment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the year is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss. In bakance sheet ECL for
financial assets measured ot amortised cost is presented as an allowance, ie as an imegral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet, The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off enteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross camying
armerund

e. Employee Benefits

i Shori-term employes bewafis

Short-term employes benefits include salaries and shori-term bonus. A liability is recognised if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount a5 a resull of past service provided by the employes, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid over the period of services rendered by the emplovees 1o the Company

i Gramuily
Every employee is entitled 1o a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The
same is payable ot the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is carlicr. The benefii vest after five vears of continuous service.

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the
amount of futwre benefit that the employees have earned in retum for their service m the current and prior period. Such benefit is discounted to determine its present
valiee, and the fair valee of any plan assets, 1Fany, 15 deducted.

The present valug of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit Method which recognises each

period of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures cach unit separately 1o build up the final obligation.

The ebligaton is measured at present values of estimated futurs cash flows. The discounted rates wsed for determining the present value are based on the market
yields on Government Securities s at the balance sheet date

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from expenence adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they oceur, dinsctly
in ether comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

i, Provident fund

The contribution 1o provident fund is considered as defined contribution plan. The Company has no abligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident
fund. The Company recognises eontribution payable to the provident fund scheme a5 an expense, when an employes renders the related service,
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(AN s are i INR Lokl widess otherwise siated)
L. Significant accounting palicies (Continued )
i Compensated absence

The eligible employees can camry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and wiilize it in future service periods or receive cash
compensation on anmual basis or on termination of employvment whichever is earlier. The Company reconds an obligation for such compensated absences in the
period in which the employee renders the services that increase the entitbement. The obligation is measured on the basis of ununilised leave balance in the statement of
profit and bss as and when they are incurred.

v Share based payment arrangements

The cost of equity settled share-based payment transactions with employees is measured by reference io the fair value of the options using option pricing model at the
date on which the options are granted which takes inte account market condittons and non-vesting conditions.

The fair valug is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liahility 10 pay Ultimate Holding Company based on a cost
recharge arrangement.

. Borrowing costs

Expenses refated 1o borrowing cost are accounted using effective interest rate. Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating 1o
forcign cumency bormowings 1o the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
casts directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an assel which necessarily take a substantial period of time 1o get ready for their intended use are
capitalised as pant of the cost of that psset. Other borrowing costs are recognised a3 an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The dilference between the
discounted amount mebilised and redemption value of commercial papers is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the life of the instrument using the
EIR

. Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded ot the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the ransaction. Exchange differences ariging on settlement of
revenue transactions are recognised in the satement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies are restated at the e of
exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fir value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rale when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency
wre translated at the exchange rate at the date of the mnsaction,

h. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement 15 a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the amangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the amrangement is dependent on the use ol a specilic asset or assels or whether the amangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Company assesscs
whether a contract contains o lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, o lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Company assess
whether (i) the contract involves the use of an identified assets, (i) the Company has substansially all the cconomic benefits from use of the assets through the period
of the lease and (iit) the Company has the night to direct the use of the asset

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-ofeuse nssets (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability Tor all lease arrangements in
which il is a lessee, excepl for lsases with o term of 12 month or less (short-term leases) and low value lenses. For these shon-term and low value leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line hasis over the term of the lease,

Certain lease amangements mchudes the options 1o extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term, ROV assets and lease liabilities includes these
options when it is reasonably certnn that they will be exercised. 3

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease poyments made at or before the inception date of
the lease, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right-f-use assets is mensured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accurmulated impairment
Ipsses, if any. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the stroight line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or wseful life of right-
of-use assats

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid ot that date. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined. I that rate is not readily determined the lease payments are discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate

Lease liability has been included in bomowing and ROU asset has been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.
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{AN cmvennis ave n INR Lok soiless otherwive stated)

L. Significant accounting policies {Continweid )

i. Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured ot cost less accunulated impainment, i€ any
j»  Frovisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the abligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required 1o settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rte that reflects current market pssessments of the time
vatlue of money and the risks specific to the liability, Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted fo effect curment management estimates

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed m the notes forming part of financial stiements. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in
the financinl statements. Contingent lisbilities are secognised when there is possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only By the occurence or nen-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company

k. Income Tax

Income 1ax expense comprises current and deferred s 1 is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates 1o items recognised directly
in equity or in OCI

(1) Crrrent Tax

Current twx 15 measured ot the amount expected 1w be paid in respect of taxable income for the vear in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current 1ax
comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the iax payable or receivable in respect of previous
vears. [t is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Current income tax relating 1o tems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income ar in equity ). Current
tax items are recognised in correlation 1o the underlying transaction either in OCT or direcily in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 1o interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it intends to realise
the asset and setile the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

{ii) Dferred Tux

Defierred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts in the
financial stalements.

[efierred tax assets arising mainly on account of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws are recognised only if there is reasonable cerinty
of its realization, supported by convincing evidence,

Defered tax assels on account of other temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable cerainty that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax nssets can be realised

Deeferred tax assels and habilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enocted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Changes in
deferred tax assets | liabilities on account of changes in enacted tax rates are given effect to in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period of the change.
The carrying amount of deferred tax asscts are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labililies are off sl when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities representing curment tax and
where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate o taxes on income levied by the same govering taxation laws




Billionbrains Garage Yentures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(AN avmenmts are in INE Lakhs wnless otherwise stated)

2, Significant accounting policies (Continued )

I Cush anil cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and balance with bank in current accounts, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes in
vilue. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents cash and short-erm deposits are considered integral part of the Company’s cash
management . -

m. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company asscsses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is impared when the carmving amount of the
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged (o the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An
impairment ks is reversed 1o the extent that the asset's camying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if ne impairment loss
had previously been recog nised,

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGLU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assels. Where the carmving
amount of an asset or CGLU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down (o its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available 1T no such iransactions can be
identified, an approprate valuation model 15 used

n. Segment reporting
An operating segment is o component-of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may cam revenucs and incur expenses, whose operating

resulis are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM™) 1o make decisions for which discrete financial information is availahle

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind A5 108, the CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analvsis of
various performance indicators by business segments and geographic sepments.

o. Earnings per share

The Company reports hasic and dibwied eamings per equity share. Basic carmings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profitloss atributable 1o the
equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear. Diluted earnings per equity share have been computed
by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity share lolders after giving impact of dilutive petential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares and dilwtive potential equity shares outstanding during the perindyear, except where the results are anti-dilutive

p-  Cash flow statement
Cash fMlows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or

accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments The cash flows from regular revense generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
seprepated.




Billionhrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(AN amowmis are in INR Lok anless atferwise stoted)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued )

r. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management make estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and linbilities, imcome and expenses. Actual resubis could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future years. In particular,

information about areas of significant estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts
recognized m the financial statements are included bebow:

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognised prospectively,

Information aboul assumplions and estimation uncertaintics that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment is included in the fellowing notes:

(i} Depreciation and amartization

Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may
change due o technological developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may resull in changes in the estimated useful life and in
the depreciation and amortisation charges.

(i) Revognition and measurement of defned benefit obligntions

The obligation arising from defined Benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation, actuarial rtes and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yiclds at the end of the reporting period on government bonds

The period to masurity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the pest-employment benefit obligations. Due 1o complexities invobved in the
vitluation and its bong term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions

fiii) Fair value of financiel fnstranenis

Financial instruments are required 1o be fair valued as at the balance sheet date as provided in Ind AS 109 and Ind AS |13 Being a critical estimate, judgement is
exercised 1o delerming the carrying values. The fair valie of fnancial instruments that are unlisted and not traded in an active market is determined at fair values
assessed based on recent transactions entered into with third parties, based on valuation done by external appraisers etc, as applicable.

(iv) Expected credit losses on fTnancial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets measured al amortized cost. At cach reporting date, the Company assesses
whether financial assels carried al amortized cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is "credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash Mlows of the financial asset have occurred.

vl Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future fax consequences of lemporary differences between the carmving values of assets and liahilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are recognized 1o the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences could be whilized. Further details are disclosed in Note 20

i} Provision and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are bosed on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and
circumstances known at the reporting date. The aciual outflow of resources ot a future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions

(4t} Shuere based payments

Estimating fuir value for share based payment requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, The estimate alse requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs o the valuation model including the expected life of the option , volatility and dividend vield and making assumplions abowt them. The
assumpdions and models uwsed for estimating fair value for share bosed payments transactions are discussed in Note 27 “Emploves stock option plan” { ESOP)




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

FAN amowmis are e INR Lokl iless othenwise stated)
1. Significant sccounting policies {Continued)
fviii) Leases

In determining whether an arangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the armngement at the inception of the lease. The armangement is, or
containg, a lexse date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arangement conveys a right 1o use the asset, even if
that right is not explicitly specified in the arrangement,

5, Recent Pronouncements

Minisiry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. On 23 March, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 01 April,
022, a5 below:

Ind A% 16 — Propemy Plant and equipment = The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be
recognised in the profit or Inss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment 15 annual periods beginning on or after 31 April, 2022, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
financial statements

Ind A5 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets = The amendment specifies that the “cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the “costs that
relate directly fo the contract”. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly 1o fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract), The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April,
2022, The Company has evaluated the amendment there is no impact on its financial statements '
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Billionbrains Garage Venbures Private Limited
Metes ta the Standabang financial sia i3 for the year ended 31 March 2023

(AT sonowars ave i INK Lol aotless ovbesedse statid)

4 MNan- Current livesiments

As at As # Asat

- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Wan Carrest
Investnuent is Equity Shares of subsidiaries af cost:
Hexihillion Techaalogy Privise Limstcd 31753 Ti 453 .
131 March 2022 - 63,74,323 (3 Masch 3021 30, 300728 and 01 Apeil 2020- Nd) Equity shases of Ra 100- gach|
Meobilion Fsicch Private Lamied® 3,000 - -
151 Masrch 2002 - 49.86,056 (3] Masch 1021 %% and 01 April 2000 Nil) Equity shares of Re. |- cach)

o« roww Serv Prvaie Limsted | Formerly kaown a5 Billionbrasns Cepital Privale Limited) e 125 .
131 Masch 2022 - 22 49,9945 (31 Maech 2021 22 45,999 and 1] Ageil 2000 Nil) Eqmty shaves of Bs 10V= gach]
Edlioblocks Fmsery Frivake Limited 200y L] -
131 March 2022 « 20,00, 9% (31 March 2020 10,0999 asd 01 Apeil 2000 Nil) Equity shaees of Re. 1~ aach]
Groww Pay Service Provate Lisslal 3,2 . -

130 March 1022 - 0,03 %59 (3] March 2020 and 00 Apeil 2020 - Mil) Equey shases of e 1V gach)

lavestment in Preferosce shares of assaciate al cost;
Compulsony conveible prefimenca shares of Meeabillion Technology Privase Limned - . 1,413
[0 March 2022 and X1 March 2020 Bil (01 Apal 2020 - 4,63 000} Peefesence Shares of Rs 140/~ cach]

Tolal Investments = - _ 51,150 26778 1513
* Asen 31 March 102 | the amownl i3 INE 9990, saco the fnancils are presented in INE Lakhs irounded off) ke amoust mentionad in sole in **

Currend Investmine

Asan A at Asan
31 Mla i 1 Apwil 2020

Investment in Mubsal funds - quoted

Measured s lair value through profit or loss

At Liquid Fund - Dhreet Gromth 1631 -

|31 March 2022 | 451,508 55 units of Bs |, 123835 each, (31 Masch 2020 N, D0 Aped 2020 Milj]

SBI Liguid Furd Dwect Flas Geowih dnd -

|31 March 2022 13,368 36 wits of Re. 3401 35 cach, {31 March 2021 and 01 Agpeil 2020 - Mily]

ICTCT Pruasdential Laquid Fund « Direst < Geosih s 3,400 -
131 Mawch 2022 - Wil (51 March 2020:10,51 3592 92 ol Bs. 304 745 cach and (] Agpril 30020 ; Nill]

Aditva Barla Sun Lifie Mumal Fand . - 262
131 Masch 2022 and 31 March 2021 : Bal {01 Aprd 2020 K2,130 84 of Ra 319 5365 cach)]

ICICT Prudemial Liqusd Fund - Regular - Growth - L Uit
131 March 3022 and 31 March 2021 - Ml {11 Apnl 3w 336 08K 83 of Rs. 292 3. cach|

Mippon India Liguid Fusd Grovwil - - 1219
151 March 1022 and 31 March 2000 B, 0] Apnl 20200 25 281 065 units of Bis. 4422 310~ cach)]

Tata Monay Market Fund - Regolar « Growih - - 1.363
[0 March 2022 and 51 March 2021 : B, {01 Apnl 20200 43 775 86 wnits of Bs. 3113 53/~ cachi]

Measwred ab amertised cost - quoted

Investment in cammercial pagers
Cimssreial paper of Piramal Enterprises Lamited 7.4 B -

Towal lovestments _ 13580 350 30

Aggregale wiousl of waqualed imestiment £ =
Aggropaic amouel of quoted invesinen 23.m0 1500 E ]

& T ivables

Asan s ml A an
3 March 2032 31 March 2021 1 Al 2020

vt

Tl recrivahler

Unsecured, Considored good 14,080 s [{1]
Unsecured, Considered doubiiial H . -
Lomx allnvmwoe

Unsecured, Considered deubifal (34} iy

Fet Trauly ﬁm‘“ 14.080 w5 108
Ho e or other receioblis are du from dinestons o others oificers of the Company either sevcrly of poantly with any wiber persom nor amy rade or other recen shle are dus [rom (s of

e companscs respectively in which any direcior is a panmer, 3 deecor of 8 member, excepl a2 disclosed mnote 26

Trade Recuavables Apeing

P Tl
1) Undispetcd Trade rsivath idered good o
Less: Less alline e 24
- 4 634
Mm—_rml 14,1181
Farticulars T“H
B0
0o |
s
. : - llewing ps action
Partculars FT S e B e
iegetied Trale rooenabies — cosdord ] E : - o
Tatal .
2 an
e, L |:
M Ilr' o)
\
\,




Balligabrains Garage Ventures Privaie Lmiied
Motes te the Standalone fmancial seastements Tor the vear ended 31 March 2021

(A oemouer are i IR Labler noless avbersise saaved]

TA Cash and gash equivalenis

Asan A at Az an
3 March b2l 31 March bazi 1 Aperil 2020
Balances with banks
« N CHETERL ESintd 2.5 LT50 o151
Lash ontemd - 2 !
vial LS 1.7t 5131
T8 Bank halssees other than cash and cash equivalents
Asat Asatl Azat
A1 March 3023 31 March 201 1 April 2010
Bank Dieposils - Less than 1.2 months saveni (IS 4183 [
Toesl I 41813 [%]
& Lhher financial a3acts
Asal Asat As al
31 March 2012 3 March 2021 1 April 2020
Nog-current
{limssrreed, comuidred o)
Resial and secunty deposis m B 15
Bomk deposits - having matury of mon: fan 12 monthe 135 (50 439 -
Tatal 135,874 4,347 24
Axal As wl Asm
M March 2032 31 March Bi21 1 April 720
[ —
{naecured, considersd goal]
Reieivable rom relaied partios (reloe noie 260 b [E2] s
Inierest accrued on fived deposis 1,539 45 ]
Benal snd secunity depoais 0 s :
dvance 1o omploees 7 2 14
Tutal LN i it
Todal piher financial assels 139,034 4848 5T
@ [nher azels
Azat Az at Asat
31 Mareh 022 31 March 1021 | Apeil 3058
Cwrrent
Uwsaaree, comridered poad)
Balancs with statuiory suihormes 438 1322 are
Prepasd expenses (] £] 3
Advanees wappliers Tiag 2,13 40
hers 3 - .
[Uwisvmnred, vomidered doskifuly
Adhances o suppliors 36 - N
Less: Loss allovance (3] - .
Tatal 150 47T 472




Billinnhrains Carage Venbwres Private Limited
Motes to the Stasdabane financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

AN rovcnds g m IR Labhs wwless oreneise stasesd)

10 Shere capital
As al Asat Asan
31 March hoaz 31 March 2021 1 April 2010
Number of shares Amaunt Number of shares Amuunl Number of shares Amsanl
Aviharized share capiral
Equity Shewes of IR 1 each with vouss nghts 101 LR, [HAF {1] 1, 20HLIHH) 2 1, CHHI G 10l
10000 100 1,201 12 1.0010,0041 10
Usswedd, subscribsed and paid-up share capital
Ecquity shares of par vake of INR 1 2ach with voling nghts 52,243 (0] G2 H50 7 346 998 4
Sharcs swed dhering the vear INR | cach with voling nghs 124,152 1 294793 3 Ja552 3
111653095 11 991,343 1 [EFET] 7
{a) Reconciliation of shares outstandisg al the beginning and a1 the end of the reporting yesr
Az at 31 March 2021 As at 31 Mareh D021
Mumber Amount Mumber Amauni
Equity shares
AL the commencement ol the vear 00y 243 n LU0 T
Add Issued dur i the vear L34, 153 1 P2l i
At the end of the year 1116308 i1 LT [T]

thy Terms'rights sitached to equity shares

The Compasy has oely one clavs of equity share. baving a par vakie of INR 1 per share. Every member holdimg ouity shares thevein shall have vosng rights i propomion 1o ther sharg of the paid wp oquity sharg
copital. The holder of the equsy shares shall be catitlad o dividind as and when doclared by the Compary in propontion 10 the rumber of shascs held In the cvent of liguidation of the Company, the bolders af the
equaty shases will be entaled o share i ths resadual assats of the Compamy. The distnbution will be in propostion o the mumber of aquity shares held

andl’ or their subsidiari

iel Partiulars of Sh

As &l Asai As at
e T 30 March 2031 30 March 305101 Apil 2020
Equity shares with voting righis
Groww Inc, USA. the Holding Company 111835 2 12 B2

i Partiowlars of shareholders hbding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

As mi 31 March 2022

Az at 3] March 2021

As a1 April 2010

Masher af shares % holling  Mumber of shares e holling  Number of skares % haliling
Mume of the shareholder held e held
Giromow Ine, LISA, the HMd* Compam, [ T 9 A 2 142 SHLHHER S AUT 54U R
1,1 165,804 [ 991,247 9,000, GULM0 49 S,
Geh Paniculars ol Sharcholding X
Name of the sharehelder As af 30 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 Azl April 20200
Mo of Shares | %% of tstsl shares | Noof Shares % of total shares | Mo, of Shars i ol piital shares
e br. UUSA, tho Holdag Compamy L1063 USRI, It 247 T R [T I SERH
|Harsh Jain ] [IECETTEA 1 00 1 TR |

(M The Company has net issued am: shares withew gavmment being reczived i cash, boms shares md shares bought back for the period of 3 vears inmedislely precedisg i Balasca Sheet dale or since incorparation

11 Eiher equity

As ar As at Az at
31 March 1023 31 March 2021 1 April 2019
Hztned camings. 1] {35,456} (11,353} 13,50
ficturiues premmm (up 2R1.96] .50 [ERLE]
Total ather equity 2450 1149 14,589
i} Retsased carmings
Asat Rial - A al
51 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April By
Thpening balance 113531 13,50 ]
A Less during the year (4R {7.E34) (33015)
Add Remeamremen] gomelosses) om delined emploves benetin plans (set ol 1ax) (131 5 -
Clum' balance M 1] I,Jd.u [LEITTS
Uil Securitles premium
As wl As Al
31 Maich 2012 31 March D02| I April B30
Dipsering balance 4,500 [ETTH 412
Add Premum received on issae of ogun shares 1374600 T4 13,841
Lluing balance IR e 183

Mature and perpose of reserves
il Betained exrnings:

The curvslse geen o boss ansing from the operations which s retained by the Compasy s recognised and sceuswlsted snder the heading “Retained Earsings”. At the end of the vear, the gwofit ik} affer tax is

transfrred from the staiement of profic and koss s retained eamings

{ie] Eecurities premium:

Sezurilies pranium s usal o revord the promaum on ssue of shares The resene can be uliled oy for hmiled porposs i accordance with the provisions of the Companizs Act
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Mates fo the Standalone fsancial st 15 lor the year ended 31 Mareh 2022

AN cvmammis e g INR Lorbler ndess orfeneise stonesf)
11 Trade payables

Az at Asan Asat
31 March 102 A1 March 321 1 April 202
Current
Toal outstasding dhazs of micra eicrprises and small ealempnses (refer mote 28§ 1 F
Total tastarshing dues of crediors other than micro oslorpnses and  small
anberprss
- Pavable to relatiod Party {reler mole 26) ®727 3 (5]
: irndo pavahle 1610 1.954 '
Vetal irade pavahls ”..3* 32 Hi
Trade Payables Ageing
1 Msreh 2022
Particulirs hutstasding For Tallowin i i paymen! Tutal
Lot o | v eon 1-1 e 2-1 voars Mo than 3 vears
1) MSME ] - 5 s 1
i} D 13 1 A ] i
(i} Depuied Dues: MEME - . . . =
iiv) Daspuned Dues- Othsers . % - = *
W | Lnblkad T0L0Z 0
Tatal 11338
31 March 2021
5 Lan i i date of payment
Fuch iy L than | vear 1-2 vears 2.3 vears Miore dhom 3 vears ot
(1) MSME ] " . m 1
i11) Dfscrs 1,937 L ] - 1.948
inl Dispuied Duzs- MSME . 3 - - =
v ) Digpuied Ducs- Oy = = - % '
) Unbaled 316
Tutal 3376
1 due date of payment
e Lz than | vear 1-2 vears Mowe than 3 years Teat
fah MSME < = E L -
(mi) Chhers TRl ] . - 5L
(wa) Dispanzd Dues- MSME 5 N . % =
(i Disgratid Dvcs- Others - - - . -
w1 Unballed {11
Tutal W
13 Provisisns
Az ar Asan Anal
31 March M2 31 March Jo2| 1 April Dby
Aa-siFEraar
Loevision fox promusts 0} i kL
Tota 2 e 3
Currem
u it i =
Toal 10 4 -
14 (iher labilides
As at A at Axal
51 March 2021 31 March 1021 I Agril B0
Curreni
Statutony duss payahl: 1,3 145 %]
Advimces [fom cusiomer 1 = s

Tl ethir current liahiligies 1,395 143 ]
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(AN avants ave i INR Linkhs eless otberse stated)

152 Revenue from operations

For the year emtded Far ihe vear ended
3 March 2ix2 31 March 2021
Tech platfoem and suppent charges 13,204 1,584
Taital Revense lrom operations 15,204 1.584

Revenue from comtracts wath customers diszggregated on the basis of geographic region is as below

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31 Mlarch 2022 31 March 2021
Domestic 13204 1,554
. Total Revemue from operations 13,204 1.584

Farticulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Fuor the year ended
31 March 2021

Services transberred at 3 poant i bime 13,204 1,584
Total Revenue from operntions 13204 1,584
(Hher income
) For the year emided Far ihe year ended
31 March 20} 31 March 2021
Inserest incoame on financial assels messured 2 amortssed cost
1) Imterest Income on term deposiis 4,430 6
{0i] Bterest om urnwanding of commercial paper i -
Nea gain en fur value chamges on financial instruments designated at fiar value theough profit or oss on
mvestments
(1) Realized gan an sabe of mutual fusd 487 ki
() Unrealised gain con madual fund 248 i
Intevest an mcome tax refind - 2
Rental Income p =
Tatnl EETH R5R
Enmployee henefit oxpemses
For the vear ended Far the year ended
31 Mareh 2022 Al March 2021
Salarves. allowances and banus o127 3,258
Cantrbuition to provadent fand and ather funds 20 15
e based payment G613 155
SealT welfare expenses M1 kL
Giratuiry | 2 49
Tetal 16,151 3,632
Depreciation
For the year ended For the year ended
Al March 2031 3 Mareh 2021
e 1alian oo pr . phani and agui 279 105
Total 279 [
Other expenses

Far the vear ended

For the year ended

31 March 2022

Marketing and businiss promotion expenses 20217
Saftware, server and technology expenies 5,047
Prafessional and consulting charges 570
Office maintenmno: expenses 4
Reml and mainterance charges o
Raves wndl tanes 96
Travelling and comveyance charpis [} 2
Payments to Auditors

= Saamiory Audit ] 5

- Tax Audit 2 1
Bank eharges. & ™
Proaasion For loss allowanees m -
Commumcasion expensss ] &
Foaeign exchange losses (net) 12 3
Miscellaneous expenses. 3 12
Total 216,198 6,557




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Privane Linsived
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W For ile year emided  For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 Murch 2021

Curenl L g z
Total curremt lax expense - =
Diferred tux
B mgpet ol curenl vear L i1
Total deferved tax expense - [
Income fas expense reporied in the siatement of Profic and Loss . [T}

B. Kegangiliation ol eMective iax rale

Farticmlars

Far the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2011 31 Mareh 2021
Lirss belore incomme lax expense [EITC] {7, 4555
Tax @ Iadian Lax e of 25 168% (31 March 2020 : 25 163%) o P
Torad fax expense 5 -
. Current dax assed (net)
E As sl As at As al
Fartizulars
iy 31 March 2022 51 March 2021 LAprilTo
Curresd lars assel (net) a1 13 1]
. Dederved Tax
Particulars A at Asat At
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 Aperil 2030
Delerved tax Mahilifies
Property. plant & equipment - . 1
Tutal deferowd dax liahilifies z = !
Movemend of deferved tax liabilities presented i the balance shieel
As wt Recagnised in . Asan
Far ihe nded 31 March 2022
ety f Agril 1, 2021 profitoriass  PecBMERAINOCT oy e 0pg
Deferred tas liakility on:
Progeny, plast & equipnin! - - - -
Deferied tas liabilities - = = .
As ol Recagnised in As
Farih nded 31 March 2021
v ihe year & A 1 Agril 3030 gl PEenEnised in OO 3
Dieferved tax liabdlity en:
Propemy, plast & @quipmenl | i - =
Deferved tax liabilities 1 [ - .
E. Tax lasses carvied forward
Particalars As it March 31, 2022 A al March 31, 2021 As at April 01, 2020
Fross Amouni Expiry Dt [ Expiry Dile Giross Anssund Expiry Date
Tax lnsses {buswess losses) 16,487 Various 12,439 Vamis 3412 Vancas
Tas lnsses junabsorbed depreciaon 565 Indefiniie Period 190 [ndelinne Perid 50 Inadalinge Pariod

F. Unrecognised deferved iax nsseis

As ai March 31, 2022

Particulars N

As an March 31, 2021

As at April 01, 3020

Cerngs Ameuni Unreengnised tax Gress Amaunt Unrecognised Giress Anwant Umrecognised tax
eflieci eflect
Tax lnsses (busmess basses) 487 [ATH] 12439 3,131 3412 [
Taos losses (unabsorbed depreciation) S5 142 1501 45 ] 15
Tatal unrecognised deferved s assels 37,053 0,315 [EE 3179 3471 ¥4

Mot Pending ressonable catainty and as a matier of pradence, defered tax asset has not been recognised
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11 Employee benefit ahligations

Defined Contribution Flan

Caneribation ase made 10 Provedent fund in India for employees. The contributions are made 1o registered Provident fund admimistered by the Government The expenses
recognased dunng the penod 1owards defined contnbution plan is INE. 80 for the year ended March 31, 2022 (INR 34 for the year ended March 31, 2021)

Defimed benelin plans

The Company provides For grataity for employees in India as per the Payment of Grannty Acl. 1972 Employees wha are in continuows service for a period of § vears are
whysble for gratusty. The amoumt of gratusty payahble on retirementtermanation i the employees last drawn basic salary per month compated proportionately for 15 doys salay

multiphed for the number of years of service

Azl 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

As ol 01 Aperil 2020

Particulars.
Current Nom-current Carrent Mom-curreni Current Mom-current
Ciratuaty 10 02 T - 36
Total ¢mnploves bemelit abligations 10 L] 6 L KL
(i) Recon fon ol opening and closing balamees of Delined Benefit Obligation
Description Anal Al
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Defined Benefit Obligation (DXBO) at beginning of year L11] 3B
Currenl service cost (414 45
Interest cost 1 4
Actuarial boss / {gainp recognased in other comprehensive incomae
a) changes i demographac assampiion = =
b} changes in finamcanl assumptions M -
) experience adjustiments 1% 15)
Benefits pasd = =
Dilined Benelit Dbligation (VB al year end 212 il
(i} Expenses recognised during the vear
For the vear Far the year
Descriplion ended eivilid
Alarch 31, 2022 Alarch 31, 2021
Current service cost 110 45
m_ﬁﬂl il 10 4
Expenses recognised in Frofit and loss 124 48
{iv] Expenzes recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (O0CT)
For the year For the vear
Deseription ended ended
March 31. 2022 March 31, 2021 _
Actureal | LosseshGaing on oblagation for the year T 5
Net (ExpensepInceme for the year recoguised in OC1 (13§ 5

1
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11 Employee hemefit obligations (contimued)

v} Acturial nssumprions

Gratuity as om March 31

Description
031 Todl

Moustahty Table (LIC) India Assured Lives India Assisred Lives

Mariality 2002-14  Mosaliny 2012-14
Duscount raie (pa) 7.02% 662%
Atntion Bate 18.00% 150085
Rate of escalation in salary {pa) 11.00% 11 00fa
Retwement aue 50 Vears B0 Years

v Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

Particalars Far the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

15 1%

Dhscount rae © +1%

Dhscount rme - -1% 16 a0
Salary escalation rate - +1% 11 49
Salary escalation rate - -1% EY] k]
Altritien rale +1% ()] Al

T 47

Altntion rate. =13
The above semsitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while balding all cther assumptions constant. Wi caleulating the sensstraity of the defined benefi

obdigation 1o ssgmificant acluarssl assumptions the same method {present vabue of the defined benefit abhgation calculsed wath the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) bas been applied as when calculatng the defined benefit liability recognased in the halance shee

The Monalty does not have a ssgnificant impact on the Liability | bence are nol considered a sigmificant actuanal assumptson far the purpose of Sensitivity analysis
The methods and types of assumptions wsed in propanag the sensitivity amalysis did not change compared to the prior year

The expected Fubare contnbution and estimated future benedic payments from the fand are a3 follows

Farticulars Gratuity
Expected contrsbution to the furd during the year ending 31 March 2022 Unfunded
Estimated benefit payments from the fund - Tume pericd (in veas)

Within | year 1
2-5years 44
& -10 years 126
11-1% years 75
Above |5 year W
o-Fr
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22 Appreach on exemplions under Ind AS 100 First Time Adoption of Indias Accounting Standards

Tramsition o Ind AS

For reporting pericds up to and ncludieg the vear ended March 31, 2021, the Company prepared its financial statements in aceordance with Indian GAAP (previous GAAP)
The Company has prepared its financial statements m accordance with Ind A3 prescribed under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principbes generally sccepted m
India and & notified by Mimstry of Corparate Affirs with the transstion date being 00 April 2020 The impact of transition ks been provided in the Opening Reserves as a
01 Apnil 2020

I preparing these financial statements, the Company has opted 1o avail the choices available for certain transitional provisiees within led AS 101, *First tme adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards’, which offers exemption from applying specified Ind AS retrospectively. The mos1 significant of these pravisians are in the following areas:

Mandatory excepiion:

Estim ates;

Asper Ind AS 101, an entity’s estumates in accordance with Ind A5 at the date of transition to Ind AS a1 the end of the comparative period presented in the entity's first Ind AS
fimancial statemems, as the case may be, should be consistera with estenanes made for the same date i accordance with the previous GAAP unless there i objective evidence
that those estimates were n error. However, the should be ad d 1o reflect amy differences in accounting policies

As per Ind AS 101, where apphicabon of Ind AS requires an enbity 1o make certain estimates that were rat requared under previcus GAAP, these estimates should be made 1o
reflect conditions that exasted at the date of transstion (for preparing openang Ind AS balance sheet) or at the end of the comparative pensod {for presenting comparative
nfarmation as per Ind A%)

The Company's estimates under nd A% are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates considered in preparation of the standabone financial statements that were

- Determimation of the discounted value for financial mstruments carried at amortised cost

- Impairment of financial asseis based on the expected credit loss mode]

= Famr valuation of financal instruments carmed s FYTPL

Classification, measurement and lmpairment of financial asseis

lod AS 100 requires am entity 10 #ssess classification of fimanceal assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the dme of transition. Further, the standard

permis meassurement of Tlinarcial assels sccounted at amestised cost based on facts and circumstances exsting at the date of transstion o retrospective applcation 15
mmpracticable

Accordmgly, the Company has determmed the classification of finanesal assels based on facts and circumstances that exst on the date of transition Measurement of the
fmancial assets pecoumied ot amortised cos ks been done retraspectively

Optional exemptions:
i Dreem ed cost for praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assels

The Company his edected 1o continge with the caryng value for all of its propesty, plant and equipment and mtangsble assets as measured as per the previous GAAP and used
that & s deemed cost as at the date of transition

ii. Classification and measurement of financial assels

At the transition date, the Company amsstdﬁc conditions for classification of Nnancial assers and accordingly classified #s financial assels M :uh;r amortised cost, fair
walue thromgh other comprehensive income or fair valwe through profit and loss account, as appropriate, under the provisions of Ind A% 109, ‘Financial Instroments’.

i, De=recognition of financlal assets

The Company has elected to not recognise financal assets or lnancial labilnes shich were de-recognised in accordance with s previous GAAP a5 a result of wansactions
that occurred before the transition date

iv. Investment in subsidiary

The Compary has elezted 1o canmy is ivestment in subsidianes and associates at deemed cost whach s is previous GAAP carrying amoans at the date of transition 1o Ind AS




Billisnbrains Garage Ventures Private Limiled
Noles 1o the Standalone fimancial sintements for the year ended 31 March 2022

AN arrreauts enve o FVR Lol sonless atferwase siared)
22 Appreach en exenptions under Ind A% 100 First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards | Contisued)

Recomciliation of net worth and net loss between previoss GAAP and Ind AS Guancial statemenis,

A. Reconciliation of shareholders’ equity as per previous GAAP and Ind AS finasclal stas I

As al As at
st March 2021 Ian A prid 2020
Enquity umiler previous GAAT 114,136) [3.516)
Adjustment of rent equulisation reserve 13 10
Share based payment 2.B07 (31
Crrnfusly expenss 54 (34])
Met gan on Fair value changes 3 a2
Equity a5 per lnd AS 111,353) [3,504)

B, Reconciliation of net profit as per previons GAAP and Ind AS fimancisl stst

For the year emnided
Partl
artlculars 31 Murch 2021

Met less under previoas GAAP (1T 20 B
Ml boss an fiur value changes (54

Share based paymem 2872

Ay of rent equalsation reserve ]

Grsuiny expemsg 53

Lass for the vear under lnd AS [T

her comprehensive income

Remeasurement gams om defined benefit plans

Other comprehensive income for the year unider Tnd A5

Todal comprehensive income umider Ind AS | 7845

. Reconcilistion of Statemem of Cash Mows
Thiere were mo matenal differences between the Statement of Cash Flows presesed wder Ind AS and the Previcus GAAT

Mobes to reconciliation

a. Met gain / loss an fabre valee changes
Under Previous GAAP, invesiment in noutaal fusds was carmied 8 bower of 0osL or net realisablie value. Under Ind A8, these investments are mersured w faar
value through peofit and loss (FVTPL)

b, Remeasarement of net defined benefin linkility
Under Ind A%, re-mseasuroments of e net defined benefit abilaty, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognased in other ¢
Under previous GAAP, the Group has recognesed aciuarial gasns and bosses in profil or less

, VE OO

. Share hased payments .

Ursder Previous GAAF, the Company followed intrinsic value method For accounting compensation experse of employee stock optians. Under Ind AS, in case
of equity settled share based payment transactions wilh employees, the Far value as on the grant date should be estimated and recogmised is an expense over the
wiaking penad
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23 Financial imstruments - Fair values and risk managenent
A Accomnting classificatiens nnd fair values
Fair values are categorsed imo dafferent levels in a fwr value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuaton iechniques as follows
Level 1 - Quated prices (unadpasted) in active markets for identical assets or lizhilibes
Level I - Inpurs other than quoted prices included washin Level | that are abservable for the asset or labilaty, eather darectly (e a3 proces) or indmrectly (12 denved from prices)
Level 3 - Ieguns for the asseis or habalities that are not based on ohservable market data (unchserable inpues)

The Fedlowing tnble shivs the carying amounts and Gur valoes of financial assets and financial liabalities, mcluding their bevels in the fair valug higeanchy

As at 31 March 2022

Carrying value Fair value
Particilars it """r::::“d m:::m""" Level | Level2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial assets
Invesnments (exchadirg subsidiary |* 16,776 7,204 23,980 16,774 - - 16,776
Trade recevables - 14,080 14 080 B - = e
Cash and cash equivalents - 2,305 2305 - 4 5 -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalnis - 10,506 10,506 . - g -
Oeher fi | fasils - 139,034 136034 . . - -
16,776 173129 189,905 16,776 - - 16,776
Fimuncial lnhilities
Trade payables = 12,338 12138 = = - -
= 12,338 12,338 = = = -
As af 31 March 2021
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars FATREmantcsil Tt D Levll  Level2 Level 3 Totul
cusls AnLoang
Finamcial assets
I lexcluding subsidary)* 3,509 - %509 3509 . - 3,509
Trade receivables - oas5 o5 b . d 3
Cash and cash equivalesis - 2,752 2,752 . . - -
Bark balances other than cash and cash equavalenis - 42 RI3 42’13 - " -
Oiher financial assets - 4 848 ABIE = = =
3,500 51,408 54,917 3509 = - 3,500
Financial liabilities
Teade payalbles . 2276 2.3 . - o B
= = 2276 1276 = = = -
As at 1 April 2020
Carrying valae Fair value
- 3 r
Particulars T e et~ MMM iait yiay Level ]  Level2 Level 3 Taul
cosls ok
Financinl nszeis —
Investments (exchiding subsadiany ® 3&00 - 3,800 3,800 . - 3 B00
Trade necervables - 10801 160 - - - =
Cash and cash equivalents . G052 9132 - - r -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - a3 a3 o b E .
Chher finarecial nssets - 357 337 = - - -
3,800 9,653 13,452 3,400 - - 3,800
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 561 B2 - - - =
- Rl Bl = - - -

® Investmvent in swbsadiaries 1s measured at cast

Thi company does rot have amy financial asset or liabalities measured @ fair vabue thaough other comprehinsave income
The company has not separately desclosed the fair values for finascial asses and habalities other than investments, because their carrying amoanis are a reasonable approxematon of the
Faar values.
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B Measurement of fnir volues

Valuation technique used o deemins Far valugs

Spealic valsation technigue 1o value financial instruments like -
i Use of queted mawket prices for fnancial instraments iraded n active markets

it For other financial msirumenis - discounied cash flow analysis.

C Financial rish mamnagemeni

The Company has expasure 1o the following risks ansing from financial instruments
{u) Credht nzk;

{n) Lagquadity risk, and

it} Market risk

i. Risk management lramewverk

The Company's basd of directors has overall respensibality for the establishment and oversight of the Company's nsk " fi k The Company's risk

policies are establishid 10 idemtidy and una]rse_lhu rizks faced by the Company, to set appropriate sk limits and controds and to moenstor nisks and adberence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regulaly 10 reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activiies The Compasy, teough its traineng and management starclards and
procedures, aims w maintain a dseplined and construcive controd enviranment in whach all employees wnderstand their rales and abligarions

i, Credit risk

Credin nisk 13 the risk of financial boss to the Company of 2 customer or counterparty 10 & financedl instrument Tails 1o meet 113 contractual oblgations, and anses principally from the
Compaany's receivables from customers. Credit nsk anses from cash held with banks and financial institutsons, as well as eredin exposure to clients, includang trade receivable The
mimusm exposse oo credin risk 5 equal 1o the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterpany credin risk is to prevent losses in fimancial assets. The
Company nssesses the credit qualiny of the counterparties, taking indo account their financial posstion, past experience and other factors

The allowance for lifetime expected credi boss on trade receivaldles for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was INR 34 and INR MNil respectively. The recoralialion of allowance
for dowbiful trade receivables 15 as Follows

Partbculars Far the vear Fur the year
31 Maorch 2022 31 March 2021

Ealamce at the beginning of the year = =

Changes durivg the year 4 5
Biad Dhebas wrimten ol - .
Balamce at the end of the yenr A4 oz

Cnsh nnd cash equivalenis
Cradit risk on cash s cash equivalents is hoited as the Company generally invests in deposits wills banks and financial mststutions wath high credit ratings assiged by donsestic credit
raking agencies
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13 Financlal Instraments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
iii. Liguidity risk
Liquidity nsk is the risk that the Compasy will ancounter dificulty in meetng the obligations ssseciated with its financial babililies that are setiled by delivering cash or anotker Gancial asset The

Company’s spgeoach o mansging hquidky & 10 ersure, as fr s possible, that ) will ave sufichent Bquidity 10 swe s lishibies when they are due, ander both normal and stressed comditions, withom
imcuming enaccepialle kgses of rsking damage so the Company's reputation.

The Company’s principal sowrces of liquaduy are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is genermal ram aperatiens The Company has managed its liquity md working capital nequinements
throssgh eash gemesated from operations and through mtermitien shoat term baneowings. The Company kas sufficeent short term fund based lises, which provides healily liqudty and these camy highest
credit quality raung fom repned condil rating agency. hence no liquidiny risk is peareened

The following ar= the remaining contesciusd serunities of inancial labilities ai the reponing dote The amouns e gross asd andiscounted. and include estimated interest pavments asd excludy the mmpact

of neting agrezmenis
i 3
31 March 2022 Carvylmg smound & months ar sy Dueinfi- 12 Doein - 2 year  Due More than
months 2 yeais
Mon-derivative fnancial liabilices
Trade pen-ables 12334 12 318 - - -
12,558 12,338 - . .
Centraciual eash Mews
31 March 2021 Carvying amount & months or less Dueim&- 12 Duein - year Dwe More than
= months 2 yirars
Men-derivative imancial linhifities
; Trade poyobles 1276 XM - - =
2270 5‘& - - =
Comtraciual cash flows
1 April 2000 Carrying amasnt 6 meantha or s Dueinfi- 13 Doein 1= 2 year Due Mare tlan
meenths 2 iy
Nom-derivative finamcial Exhilities
Trode pavables 452 L - . =
Anl .07 - - -

iv. Mlarkei vish

Market nisk is thhe risk thay the Bair valug or fiture cash Nows of a financial mstrument w0 Mectwie becas of changes in market prices. Markei sl comprises of three rpes of nsks. inlerest rate msk
poice risk and carrency nisk Financal mstruments affected by market nsk includes irade recaivalie/pay abde, other fimancial assets ond liabilities. The Comnpany i nol exposed ba any sipmilicand market
risks

Twdvresd rade vk

Umiemesd rata sk i the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a linsncal instiresent will Nuctumte because of changes in market interest rales. The mlares) rave risk <am aleo impact the provision fr
redwal binefts. The Company generally uiilises fxed rae bomosings s theselore nol subject io mterest rote nsk, since neither the carnying seneasst nor e Gaburg cash Bows will Muctuste because of
changs in the market mierest mies. The Company is not exposad 1o sgeafcast mienest rale nak as al the respectine reponing dases

Laerrency vk
Foaesgn currency nsk is the nsk that whe fair vabse of Fture cash Dows of an exposure will Quctuaie because of changes in Tragn evchange mles Exposunes con anss on account of the o assets gl
Tzl which are d i d in currencies other thas Indews Rupee
Thir Folloming table shows foreign currency expasures in LIS o feancial matruments o1 the end of the reporing penod
il Farelgn Curvency Expacure:
Particulars 3 March Pk} 31 March 2021
L) [IET7H
Men- Fimancial Asseis
Adueace U suppliers (Ra ) 23 29
Finangial Liahilities
Trade Pavable (Ha } 7,008 ¥
et Tedal (7,04} (200)
il) Fereign Curivicy Sensilinilys
Particulars 31 March 2032 31 March 2021
=2rand
LISD Usp
1% Depreaation i MK
Impact on simenent of profil and loss Ll ¥
Particulary 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
SR e
LISIy UsD
1% Apprection in INR
Impact on o proil s boss (7 15)

v. Capital Managemeni
The Company's policy is 1o maintain & strong capital base 5o as fo maistain imvestor, creditor and market confidence and to sestain futurs develop af the b Tha Camp jtors B retam
o capital asd i3 obgecin e whem momagng capital is b meiniain an oplined stnsciure 50 48 1o memimin shareholder value

X |
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24 Contingent lishilities and commlimemts (10 the extent mol prenaded for)

Particulars Asat Asat Ad Al
31 Mareh 2022 A1 March X021 1 .ﬂu)l'il 240
—— —

a) Contingerd Liakslities = -
b} Commitments
Estimated amaunt of canbmets remaning 1o be executed on capiial account and not provided for - - -
) Claims against the Company nol acknowlediped as debes = - -
The Company did nol bave any long berm coniracts including desivative conracts for which there were any material foreseesble bosses

I5 Earnings per share (EPE)

The folbowing enble scts forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
Parti Far the vear ended
iculnrs

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Earniups

Loss for thee year attibutable 1o equity shareholders for caleulation of hasic and diluted EPS {In [NR Lakhs) . (24.103) {7,845
Shirres

Weaghted average number of equity shares outsianding dunmg the vesr for calculason of basic EPS (In Lakhs) 10 8
Effiect of dilutive g | equity shares - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulation of diluted EFS (In Lakhs) il |3
Ein enrnings per share [X,300.54) 19H7,49)
Diluted earmimgs per share [2,300.34) {#B7.4%)
Nominal valiee per share 1 1

26 Relnted party disclesures
As per Indian Accoussting Standard om related party disclosres (Ind AS 24), the names of the related partes af the Company are 25 follows

A Names of related parties and related party relationship with whom transactions kave taken place

Name Trpe

Growvw Inc Hualdirg ecenpany

Meathillion Technology Privale Liomied Subssdiary company

|F||hs|ii§1_= Investment Adviser Private Limated Eriierpaises havirg key sremeTt, | | in ca
Mizobalhon Fentech Provate Limited |Subssddinry company

Crosww Sery Private Limited {Formerly known as Billionkeaies  [Subssdiary company
Cagital Privace Limated)

|Billionblocks Finserv Priviie Livsied Subsidiary campany

Growow Pay Service Private Limived Suhsidiary campany

Lalit Keshre |ey management personel

Harsh Jasn [Key mwanagement personnd

Meexa) Singh Key management personned of holding company
[i5han Binszal Key management personnel of holding company

B The follewing transactions were careled aut with the related parties in the erdinary course of hasieess:

For the year enaled  For the year ended

Matire of Transacison Helaved Farty 31 March 2033 31 March 2021
Giroww Ing B Ienvestment in Equity Inssruments imchading securies premoum 187 441 6,412
Share hased paywents GGl 255
Mewthallson Technology Provate Lemited Ievestment in Equity Instruments 25,000 19,962
Teeh Matform charges (excludmg GET) 12,440 287
Iervestment en C'mnpll.unr!.' Canvertible Preference shares (CCPS) - 4978
Expenses incumred by relaned pamy on bebal "ol Company 1,937 aid
Espenses incismid by Company on behalf of related pary {1,574) (IEE)
Sodtware, Server and techmalogy expenses ] ¥
Advarses recovennd 1a -
Adhvances pad (L] E
Mectllion Finbech Private Limited Investment in Equaty Instremenis 5,000 a
Adhances recovered o 125
Y Adhances paid [} (132)
Tech Platform charges received (excluding GST) [LEN) )
Cireas Pay Service Privae Limnised Investment in Equity Instrumenis 3,000 =
Tech Plaiform charges (excluding GST) i -
Rental imcome (k4] -
Advances paid {0y -

W Advanees recovered 0 2
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Relnied party diselosures {comtimised)

“Far the year endid  For the vear ended

Nature of Transaction Related Party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Girowow Serv Private Lavsted (Formerly known as Billsonbrasns  Tech Platform charges (excluding GRT) ] =
Capatal Private Limited)
Audvances recovered i .
Expenses incurred by Company oo behalf of related pamy - iy
1 in Equizy | 1 = 235
Fiswvantage Invesiment Adviser Private Limated Advances recoversd 1 K
Billionkbocks Finsery Privabe Limited Expenses incurred by related party on bebeal i of Company 13 35
Advance pasd {13 )
Advances recovered EE] -
Platfoem changes (exchudimg GST) S -
In n Equity | ([} 100
Lalnt Keshre Purchase of Eguity Instruments of Groww Pay Serivee Private ] 2
Fivaied
Purchase of Eguity Instiruments of Nextbillion Technology 240 =
Private Limited
Dhreciors Remuneration® 143 &4
Harsh Jain Purchase of Equity Instruments of Geowaw Pay Serises Private 1 .
lamated
Purchise of Equily Irstrunsents of Mextbillion Technology 400 =
Private Limited
Meerag Sangh Purchise of Equily Irstruments of Nexthillicn Technodogy 323 -
Provate Limived
Remmuneration® 143 &5
Ishan Bansal Purchase of Equaty [nstrumenis of Mexthillion Technology 325 -
Prvvate Linmbed
*Thse asnount doses mot inelude provisson for grabuity 2s the same s determaned for the Company a3 whole based on actuanal valuation
Dustnmling balances
Particwlars Related Party AR At Al
31 Mnrch 2022 31 March 2021
Ciravwew Ine Trade Payable 6,934) X
Trade recervables I =
Nixtbilbon Technalogy Private Limated Trade receivahles 13,591 a1l
Dhher finarcal asseis 1,556 130
Trade Payable (1, 792) =
meuw Investment Adviser Private Linated Chther fimancial ases . |
Meabillion Fintech Private Limited Trade recervables 1 28
iher financial assils E 2
Girowow' Serv Private Lamsted (Foamerly known as Billionhrains— Trade receivahles Q e
Capital Private Limited)
Onher financial assils - ]
Billionkdocks Finsery Prvate Lumited Trade receivihles X 7 -
[iher financial assels . 15
Crrorww Fay Serace Privale Lioiied Trade receivables 16T E
{Mher financial asseis 2
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FAR cvmpennrnly e i INR Laddes aonless odheriise simed)
17 Share Based Payments

All the Company’s employees or consultants approved by the Board, are eligible for being considered for the grant of steck optsans under Groww Ing 2007 Stk ncentive Plan (*GSIP
2017) admimistered by the Holding Compasy

Steck options granted wnder GSIP 2017 would vest hased an the tenvs and conditions mentsoned 10 the respective Stock eption Grant MNotice The holding compary has issued Fully
westad stock aptsons and stock options with a vesting peniod of 48 manths with o cliff of 12 months in graded manner. YVesting of opsons woulkd be subject to continued employment with
a Company. The specific vesting schedule and conditions sishject to whach vesting would take place would be cutlined in the document grven to the option grastee a1 the time of grant of
options. The excercise price of the optsons granted ranges between USD 002 - USD 37.01

Far stock aptians issued under GSIP 2007, the weighted average fair value of oplions granted during the year was 524 57 (March 31, 2021 $229) As at March 31, 2022 the weighted
average contractual remainang hife of options is 1 97 vears

Movement of share aptiens dusing the financial year

Prrticulnrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Clutstandsng as at the beg g of the vear 1,295 359 1,060,045 THR, 508
- Cranted 4315 2E0.451 IR ORS
- Repurchased {16,475} (26,789} {8, 5345
- Farfizited (23 256) [27A452) [ENEET]
Duistandimg as af the end of the year 1,667,437 1,295,259 1,080,040
Visted as at the year end 1,119,072 S48 854 198,964

Fair valwe of steck options granted

The fair value of the stock options gramed 15 esimated al the gram date using amm's length price of the stock oplians computed based on the Black-Scholes model, taking inte accouant
the terms and condilians upon which ike stock options wene granted. The mputs used to measure fair values of optices granted on the gram date were a3 follows

The fallowing table lests the inguis 1 the apison procang models For the year ended

I_ : March 31, 2002 | March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Dwvidend vield (*a pa ) (L [
|I:':l.pn'wd volatility (% pa ) 3ty 3% 3%
|H|sk-l'rne interest rave (% pa ) 048% 022 0 53%
|F.:q'-enrd liffe o o (years) 2 4 &
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{Al ot are b INE Linkhs anless atferatoe s

28 Dwes to Micro and Small Enterprises
Tha Minsary of Mucro, Sniall and Madim Enterprises hos issued on Olfice Memoradum dsed 26 Augwss 2008 which pecomemnds that the Micro od Small Erterpnses shoald mesaion in
their ¢ pondnis wilh i3 the Entr M dum Mumber as all d alter filng of the Mamesasadum, Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounes payable
o such enepries o al 3 March 2022 bas been made in the financinl statements based on ad recaivid s available with the company, Further, in management’s view, the impact
ol imerest, iU asy, that may be payable in accordanos with the provisions of the Macro, Small md Medeasn Entarprises Davelop Art, 200 {'the Aci’) is not expecied io be monenial

A al As ol As ad
Paniculars
= A-Mar-23  3i-Mar-11_31-Mar-20

The principal amoant and wierest dug theram mmaining wnpad to amy supplier 25 al the end of the pecouniing e

= Principal amount I I E
= Imerest dus theresa - . -
The amournt ol imeres paid by e company along with the payment made o the supglier bevond the appoimed des during the vear 5 : E
The amoust ol imeresy due and paoable for the period of delay in making paymeni (whick have been paid bt bevond the appointed day during - . .
Amount of imeres sccrusd md remsining wpand o1 the end ol e accounting vear - - .
The amoum of futher miere remming due md paovable even in the succesding years. il sciusdly pasd 10 the amall enlerprise. Tor the - . .

purpese of disaliow mnce i & deductible expendilure

Tadtal outstamiing priscipal dues of mécrs enterprises and small enterprises included in Trode Payalbles [Nate 12) (] 2 =
29 Key Ratios )
Numeraber Denamsinatar 31 March 2022 31 Mareh %% vasianee
021
a} Current Ratio Talal carrent assets Toaal cument liabalitis 455 nn Al
b Debi-Equity Rasa Dbt consists of borrowings and lease liztililies Toasl eqpary WA WA HWA
c) Diebl Service Covernge Ratio Eaming o Dbt Servce = Net Profit alber taves + Debt szrvice = Intenest md lease NA MA NA
Mon-cish ogerating expenses + Intarest + Other nosr pavments + Principal repay ments
cash adjusiments
db Return on Equity Ratio Prodil fior the veor less Preliranie dividend Average toial equiny -15% 1% 1%
(i )
&) I emibary lurnener rallio MA A WA NA MA
1) Trvede Riscen abdiss umonar ratio Revenue from openlions : Avgrage irade receivables 174 190 -
g Trade pavahles lurnover ratio, MA NA NA MA MA
I} Met eoputal ummeuer i, Revenue from operations Avarage workmg capital (e Total 3 % 21%
currenl assets ks Tolal current
lighilities)
ih Mt peoda ratio, Prodit o ke year Rgvenue fom operalions 1 EM R 3TN
¥ Bturm oo Capital eenployved, Profi befiore tax ond fmance comg Capital emploved = Net worth # i AP L.
Lease labilities = Delerred Lax
liakilities
L) Returs o myvesimenl Income generated [rom myvested funds Average invested funds m ireasury NA WA WA
invesimenis
Details of significamt changes (12, change of 2% or more as compared ta the i distiely previous finamcial year) in key financial raiies, slesg with detailed planstions
theresl:
earis Beason for YVarance
a) Current Hatio Dcrease 1= om accousd of incresse in operations readung in Bcresse w trade payablos
) Trade Becenables iumover rass Dheirensi w om account of increass in tech plaifoms med suppont charges when companed with the increase in average trade recenables
i Met prodit ray Imgroved on acoownt increase in lech platform and supgon dharges
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I& Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
Thar MinAry off Macro, Small and Medum Enierprises has issued on Oifice Memeieduns daed 26 Augast 2008 which recommends that ihe Micro and Sarall Enterprises should sestion e
their pondinos with ws 5 the Enirey My du NI-I-I'I'MN-I allncaed after Sng of the Mamosandum. Accondingly, the desclosure in respect of the amounes payable
tir such enteprises o al 31 March 3022 has been made m the finzncil si 5 hased on reenved al available with the company, Further, in managament's view. the mpect
al inteses, iy, that may by payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small md Modias Emerprises Development Act, 2006 {the Acr’) is not expecied 1o be malensl

Pariieulars Asat Asat Azt
-Mar-22  31-AMar-113-Mar-20

Tha principal amannt and wberes| dug Sereon remaining wnpasd to amy sepplisr o ol the end of the secounting ves

= Principall ameoust ] T o
- Imtevest due thereos - - -
The amour ol internes paid by thy compam: along with the payment mndﬂu the supgher bevend the appoissed dis durmg tha vear - . =
The amount ol inernes dug sl payable for the period of delay in making payment {which bave been posd but bevond the appoimed din during - = =
Amount of ineres seerued i remainng unpaid ai the end of the accouning year . . -
The amoun of furder mieres pensaning due md pavable s in the succeedmg vears Aill actually paid o the small entaipeise. lor the - - .

purpast of dsallon ingce i 3 deductible expenditure.

Tastal o it s of micro enterprises and small esierprives ichided in Trail Mobe | I i -

30 Mo furds have been advanced or beaned o wneted (either from bormovwed funds or share premium or any other sources o Kind of funds) by the Compams to ar in any other persons or
entiizs, mchaling foaegn eniies {7 fiawies" ) with the wnd by, whether recorded in wnting or athens e, dal the Intermadiany sall lmd cr myest in party identified by or cm
behalf of the Coanpany (Lllmate Beseliciaring). The Company bas not received oy fand Gom any parties (furding pany ) wab the undersianding that the Compamy shall whether, direcihy ar
indirecily band or invest s other persons or estities identified by or behalf of the Company (*Ultimene Beseficianes™) o peovads iny paranbee, security or the ke on behalf of the Ulnaie
Heselicianes

Al Segment Reporting
The Compam's opevations: predommanthy relaie vo eqary brokag, sl fesd sl s relaed sctivities business and is the only operatmg segmnent of the Comgany The Cheel Dperaing
Digiasion Maker [CODM) reviews the operations of the Company s cee operasg segaen . Heo o separale segmend nformation has bean fumished herewath

T Compam ap im one geopmphic s2g namely “within Indis” and ke i separ s inf for g h wise disclosure is required

As ped our fepo of iven dale
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditor(s) on separate financial statements/financial
information of such subsidiaries as were audited by the other auditor(s), the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated loss and
other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
along with the consideration of reports of the other auditor(s) referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other
Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's directors' report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/audit reports
of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

Principal Office:
W 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,

Weslern Express Highway, Goregaon (Easl), Mumbai - 400063
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends io liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether
the Group have adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
Page 2 of 6
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basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements/financial information
of such entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements/financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further
described in paragraph (a) of the section titled "Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter(s)

a. We did not audit the financial statements of 4 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.8,505 lakhs as at 31 March 2022, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.313 lakhs and net cash flows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs.366 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors.

b. The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2020 prepared in accordance with Ind AS included
in these consolidated financial statements have been audited by the predecessor auditor who had
audited the consolidated financial statements for the relevant periods. The reports of the predecessor
auditor on the consolidated financial statements and the opening balance sheet dated 1 April 2020
expressed an unmodified opinion.

W
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of repori(s) of
the other auditor(s) on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as were audited by other
auditor(s), as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditor(s).

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have been exempted
from the requirement of its auditor reporting on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies have adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls (clause (i) of Section 143(3)).

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report(s) of the other
auditor(s) on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the “Other Matters”
paragraph:

a. There were no pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 which would impact the consolidated
financial position of the Group.

b. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022.

c. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2022.

d (i} The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements/financial information have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
companies to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with
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the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shal:

+ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements/financial information have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary
companies shall:

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements/financial information have been audited urider
the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors notice that has caused us or the other
auditor/other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} above
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither declared
nor paid any dividend during the year.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
report(s) of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not
audited by us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India since none of these companies is a public company.

ForBS R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:128510W

7’

Debabrata Ojha

Partner
Place: Bangalore Membership No.: 405014
Date: 30 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22405014AXWXNO1718
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2020 reports of the companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated
financial statements.

ForBS R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:128510W

Debabrata Ojha

Partner
Ptace: Bangalore Membership No.: 405014
Date: 30 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22405014AXWXNO1718
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 943 396 92
Intangible assets 3B - - -
Right-of-use-assets 29 - 10 -
Goodwill 27.684 27,684 -
Financial assets
i, Investments in associate 4 - - 1,513
ii. Other financial assets 8 272,015 5,430 25
Deferred tax assets (Net) 21 250 215 -
Total non-current assets 300.892 33,735 1,630
Current assets
Financial assets
i, Investments 5 27972 8,509 3,800
ii. Trade receivables 6 1,427 1,041 100
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 7A 11,253 9,857 9,132
iv. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 7B 45,204 85,449 63
v. Other financial assets 8 3,942 1,387 332
Current tax assets (net) 21 1,125 140 30
Other current assets 9 7910 3,356 471
Total current assets 98,833 109,939 13,928
Total assets 399,725 143,674 15,558
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10 11 10 7
Other equity 1A 270,602 107,939 14,589
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 270,613 107,949 14,596
Non-controlling interests 11B 1.958 2377 -
Total equity 272,571 110,326 14,596
LIABILITIES
Nen-current liabilities
Provisions 13 247 91 36
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 21 - = 1
Total non-current liabilities 247 91 37
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Lease Liability 29 - 9 -
ii. Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 12 1 4 -
enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 12 124,543 33,014 862
enterprises and small enterprises
Provisions 13 15 7 -
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 - 2 -
Other current liabilities 14 2348 221 63
Total current liabilities 126,907 33,257 925
Total liabilities 127,154 33,348 962
Total equity and liabilities 399,725 143,674 15,558
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
Jor BS Rand Co Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors )
Chartered Accountants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Firm Registratipn No: 128510W CIN: U72900KA2018FTC109343
{)[&Aﬁ/ /
Debabrata Ojha Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 405014 DIN 02483558 DIN 05321547
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 30, 2022 Date: September 30, 2022 Date: September 30, 2022



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(AN amounis are in INR Lakhy uniess othenvise slated)

For the year ended

Particutars yaes 31 March2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from operations 15 35,092 2,951
Other income 16 7,627 25,403
Total income 42,719 28,354
Expenses
Employee benefit expense 17 22,989 4,061
Finance cost 18 3 1
Depreciation and amortization expense 19 304 127
Other expenses 20 43,070 7,540
Total expenses 66,366 11,735
Profit/(Loss) before share of profit in equity accounted investees and tax (23,647) 16,619
Share of profit of equity accounted investees - 81
Profit/(Loss) before income tax (23,647) 16,700
Income tax expense
Current tax

(i) for current year 21 288 13

(i) relating to earlier years 21 -
Deferred tax 21 (35) (78)
Total tax expense 254 (63)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (23,901) 16,765

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans 13) 7
Income tax relating o above - -

Other comprehensive income / (loss), net of tax 13 7
Total comprehensive income for the vear (23.914) 16,772

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company (23,946) 16,671
Nan-controlling inferests 45 94
Total (23.901) 16,765
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company 13) 6
Non-controlling inlerests - i
Total (13) 7
Earnings per equity share in INR (Face Value : INR 1/- per share) 26

Basic eaming per share (2,282.04) 2,116.05
Diluted eaming per share (2,282.04) 2,116.05
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BSRand Co Jforand on behalf of the Board of Divecturs

Chartered Accountants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited =

Firm Regisytion No: 128510W CIN: U72900K A2018FTC109343 rl‘//
} -

Debabrata Ojha Lalit Keslire Harshdain

Partner Director Director

Membership No. 405014 DIN 02483558 DIN 05321547

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: September 30, 2022 Date: September 30, 2022 Date: September 30, 2022



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Share capital

Particulars Amount
As at 1 April 2020 7
Issue of equity shares 3
As at 31 March 2021 10
Issue of equity shares 1
As at 31 March 2022 11
B. Other equity

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total

Securities Retained
Premium earnings

As at 1 April, 2020 18.093 (3,504) 14,589
Profit during the year - 16,671 16.671
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined employee - 5 5
benefit plans
Change in non controlling interest - 265 265
Premium received on issue of equity shares 76.409 - 76,409
As at 31 March, 2021 94,502 13,437 107,939
Loss during the year - (23,946) (23,946)
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined employee - (13) (13)
benefit plans
Change in non controlling interest - (837) (837)
Premium received on issue of equity shares 187,460 - 187.460
As at 31 March, 2022 281,962 (11,359) 270,602
Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for B SR and Co for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Firm Registration No: 1285 10W CIN: UT2900KA2018FTC109343 .
Debabrata Ojha Lalit Keshre Harsh Jain
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 405014 DIN 02483558 DIN 05321547
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 30, 2022 Date: September 30, 2022 Date: September 30, 2022



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before share of profit in equity accounted investees, exceptional items and tax (23,647) 16,619
Adjustments:

Interest income (8,816) (1,035)
Interest on unwinding of commercial paper (204) -
Interest on unwinding of security deposits Q)] (€)]
Net gain on fair value changes 877) (83)
Remeasurement of previously held interest in acquiree in business combination - (24,489)
Depreciation 304 127
Provision for loss allowance 284 -
Finance cost 3 1
Share based payments 11.256 300
Operating cash flows before working capital changes (21,698) (8,561)
Change in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (564) (935)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (700) (341)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (4,460) (3,084)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 80,267 14,928
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 2,127 154
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 151 53
Cash generated from operations 55,124 2,214
Income taxes paid, net of refund (1,276) (109)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 53,847 2,105
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (840) (405)
Investment in associate - (4,990)
Proceeds from disposal of investment - 25
Investment in mutual fund (127,800) (8,509)
Proceeds from sale of mutual fund 116,418 4232
Investment in commercial paper (7,000) -
Payment to non controlling interest holders to acquire additional stake (1,300) -
Bank deposit placed (358,352) (111,959)
Proceeds from bank deposits 132,227 37,607
Interest received 6.747 471
Net cash from/(used) in investing activities (B) (239,900) (83,522)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 187,461 76,412
Proceeds from issue of equity shares to non controlling interest holders - 40
Repayment for lease liabilities ©) (14)
Interest on lease liabilities - 1
Finance cost (3) -
Net cash used in financing activities (C) 187,449 76,437
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ¢ash equivalents (A + B +C) 1,396 (4,980)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 9,857 9,132
Cash and cash equivalents acquired on business combination - 3,705
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 11,253 9,857




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othenvise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash on hand

Balances with banks in current accounts
Balances per statement of cash flows

Notes:

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect method™ as set out on the Indian Ac

Statement of cash flows.

Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BSRand Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm RegistratiofiNumber: 128510W

Debabrata Ojha
Partner
Membership No. 405014

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 30, 2022

- 2
11,253 9,855
11,253 9,857

counting Standard (Ind AS-7)

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Billionbrains Garage Ventu

res Private Limited

CIN: U72900KA201 8FTC109343

i

Lalit Keshre
Director
DIN 02483558

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 30, 2022

2 alrsh Jain
Director
DIN 05321547

Place: Bengaluru
Date: September 30, 2022



Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts arc in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited (‘the Company’) is the "Holdini; Company", and its subsidiaries and associate together referred as "Group". The Company
was incorporated as a private limited company on 9th January 2018 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited is a
subsidiary of M/s. Groww Inc, Delaware, United States of America.

Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited is primarily engaged in carrying out the business of software designing, maintenance, testing and benchmarking, designing,
developing computer software and solutions, carry on the business of providing, building, organizing of software tools, marketing and innovatization of licensed software,
consultancy services. The company operates the web & app based technology platform, “Groww". Subsidiaries are primarily engaged in business of stock broking services
(including mutual find) and depository services, online technological facilitation /business correspondence or partner service to Banks, NBFC's and Financial institutions.

2. Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements of the Group comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the ‘Act’) read with the C (Indian A« ing Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisiens of the Act.

4

Previous period numbers in the financial statements have been restated to Ind AS. In accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard, the
Group has presented a reconciliation from the pr ion of the financial stat ts under Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 (“Previous GAAP™) to Ind AS of Shareholders’ equity as at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2020 being the transition date and of the total comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures are presented in the format prescribed under Division II of
Schedule 1II of the companies Act, as ded from time to time that are required to comply with Ind AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities, defined benefit plan
liabilities and share-based payments being measured at fair value.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. These financial statements are the Group’s first Ind AS financial statements. The Group’s financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)/(Rs.), which is also its functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 are being authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 30 September 2022.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements has comprised financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable retums from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its power to
direct the relevant activities of the entity. The fi ial of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated fi ial stat ts from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line addiny together like items of assets, liabilides, equity, income and
expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions within the Group are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of changes in
oyuity il bulwioe Ulisel teopoviively, Siswment of profit and Toae including Other comprehensive incoma (QT1) in attrihitahin i tha ity haldars of the olding
Company and to the non controlling interest basis the respective ownership interest and such balance is attributed even if this results in controlling interest is having a
deficit balance.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al an;mml.\‘ are in INR Lakhs unless ulhc.rwi.\'u stated)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Investinents in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where
y to ensure consi 'y with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying-amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Details of subsidaries and associate
Following subsidiary companies and associate entities have been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

Name of the entity Relationship Country of % of voting power
Incorporation 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Nextbillion Teclmology Private Limited Subsidiary  India 96% 91% -
Associate India - - 44%
Neobillion Fintech Private Limited Subsidiary  India 100% 100% -
Groww Serv Private Limited Subsidiary  India 100% 100% -
(Formerly known as Billionbrains Capital Private Limited)
Billionblocks Finsery Private Limited Subsidiary  India 100% 100% -
Groww Pay Service Private Limited Subsidiary  India 100% = -

(3 QA:...,'.; |H-.'D :L
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in [NR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

a. Property, plant and equipment

L Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount.

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met, and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended vse. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only
when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with these will flow with the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress are property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding

at each reporting date are shown as other non-financial assets. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in progress until construction and installation is completed and
assets are ready for its intended use,

Items of Property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal are stated at the lower of their net book value or net realisable value
and are shown separately in the financial statements, if any.

i Deprecintion

Depreciation provided on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis (changed from written down value basis followed in earlier financial years)
using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives specified in Schedule II of the Act.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset Useful life
Computers, Laptops and Peripherals 3 years
Fumitures & Fixtures 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Networking equipments 6 years

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended vse. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the date of
disposal. The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
changes if any, are accounted for on a prospective basis.

. De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition, disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised net, within “Other Income” or “Other Expenses”, as the case maybe, in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the year of derecognition, disposal or retirement.

b. Intangible assets
L Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will
flow to the Group. Intangible assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost attributable to readying the asset for use. Such intangible assets are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of these intangible assets is estimated at 3 years with zero residual
value. Any expenses on such software for support and mai payable lly are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization,

i, Amortisation

Amortisation is provided using the straight-line method on the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives and is included in the statement of profit and loss.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amaunts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

¢ Revenue from Contracts with customers

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Ind AS
115, Revenue from contracts with customers, outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes
current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs of accounting on accrual basis. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods

or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Group has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangement because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer,

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out
the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying
each performance obligation, L

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue from the following sources:

(a) Income from tech platform services is recognised upon completion of services, in accordance with the terms of contract.

(b) Income from services rendered as a broker is recognised upon rendering of the services on a trade date basis, in accordance with the terms of contract. There is only one
performance obligation of execution of the trade and settlement of the transaction which is satisfied at a point in time.

(c) Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method.

(d) Advances received from customers in respect of contracts are treated as liabilities and adjusted against billing as per terms of the contract.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(41l amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise staied)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

d. Financial instruments

L Date of Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

il Initial Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposits and bomrowings are initially recognised on the wade date, i.e. the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Recognised financial instr are initially i at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as

appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

L Classification and Subsequent Measurement
A. Financial assets

Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where appropriate, the Group classifies and measures financial
assets in the following categories :

a) Amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL):
» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (Asset held to collect contractual cash flows'); and
» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPT) on the principal amount
ontstanding,.
After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to colleet contractual cash flows and SPPI, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost usiny effective interest rate (‘EIR”) method. Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in profit or loss, Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the EIR methed. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

The EIR method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the refevant periad. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the instrument, or. where appropriate, o shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH): Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the assets, ('Contractual cash flows of assets collected through hold and sell model’} and contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are subsequently
measured at FVOCI, Movements in the carrying amount of such financial assets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCT’), except interest / dividend income
which is recognised in profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OCI are subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss in case of debt instruments however, in
case of equity instruments it will be directly transferred to reserves. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

c) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI or either designated,
are measured at FVTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. The Group records investments in equity instruments and mutual funds at
FVTPL.
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

B. Financial liubilities
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(a) Equity Instrument - An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group is recognised at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(b) Financial Liabilities Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently determined
based on the EIR method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of financial liabilities is also recognised in profit or loss,
The Group does not have any financial liability which are measured at FVTPL.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial
instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 : Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the
measurement date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date,

Level 2 : Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire
period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 : Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

Based on the Group's business model for managing the investments, the Group has classified its investments and securities for trade at FVTPL. Investment in subsidiaries
is carried at deemed cost (previous GAAP carrying amount) as per Ind AS 27.

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. For trade and other payables, the carrying amount approximates the fair value due
to short maturity of these instruments.

. Reclassification:
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initinl recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates
a business line or in the period the Group changes its business model for ging financial assets. Financial linbilities are not reclassified.

v. Derecognition:
(A) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of 2 financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
» The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or
» The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Group hes transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amount it may have to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised)
and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i} any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or loss (except for equity instruments measured at FVOCI),

(B) A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair
value. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

vi. Offsetting:
Fi ial assets and fi ial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the C lidated financial stat for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unluss otherwise stated)
2. Sigmificant accounting policies (Continued)
vii. Impairment of financial assets:

A. Trade receivables
The Group applies the Ind AS 109 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for all trade receivables,
The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLS at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on average of historical loss rate adjusted to reflect current and available forward looking information affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

B. Other Financial Assets
For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.
Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of
the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
(i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(including prepayment, extension ctc.) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot
be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the year is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for
financial assets measured at amortised cost is presented as an allowance, ie. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet, The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross cammying amount.

e. Employee Benefits
i Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits include salaries and short-term bonus. A liability is recognised if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount

as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the Group.

ii. Gratuity
Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same
is payable at the time of separation from the Group or retirement, whichever is earlier, The benefit vest after five years of continuous service.

The Group’s gratity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior period. Such benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit Method which recognises each period
of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields on

Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

iii. Provident fund

The contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plan, The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Group recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service,




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

iv. Compensated absence

The eligible employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service periads or receive cash compensation on
annual basis or on termination of employment whichever is earlier. The Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee

renders the services that increase the entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of unutilised leave balance in the statement of profit and loss as and when they
are incurred.

v. Share hased payment arrangements

The cost of equity settled share-based payment transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the options using option pricing modet at the date
on which the options are granted which takes into account market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The fair value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability to pay Ultimate Holding Company based on a cost recharge
arrangement.

f. Borrowing costs

Expenses related to borrowing cost are accounted using effective interest rate, Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which ily take a sub ial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The difference between the discounted amount
mobilised and redemption value of commercial papers is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the life of the instrument using the EIR.

g- Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions in foreign cusrencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of revenue
transactions are recognised in the of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies are restated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange

rate at the date of the transaction.

h. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the sub of the arr and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, The Group assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lense if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Group assess whether (i) the contract
involves the use of an identified assets; ({i) the Group has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the assets through the peried of the lease and (iii) the Group
has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use assets (ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 month or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options
when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any.lease payments made at or before the inception date of the
lease, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the right-of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful fife of right-of-use assets.

For lease linbilities at inception, the Group measures the lease Liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined. If that rate is not readily determined the lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate,

Lease liability has been included in borrowing and ROU asset has been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash
flows.
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Notes to the C lidated financial stati ts for the year ended 31 March 2022

(4l amounss are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

2, Significant ing policies (Continued)
i. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it Is probable that an outflow of embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amaunt of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to
setile the present obligation at the Balance sheet date, Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (rep ing the best esti of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. Pravisions are reviewed at each balance shest date nnd adjusted to effect current management estimates;

Contingent linbilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes forming part of financial sta Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements. Contingent liabilities are recognised when there is possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurence or non-occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group,

j- Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity or in OCI.

() Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises
the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it intends to realise the asset
and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of carry forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws are recogmised only if there is reasonable certainty of its
realisation, supported by convincing evidence.

Deferred tax assets on account of other temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date, Changes in deferred
tax assets / liabilities on account of changes in enacted tax rates are given effect to in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period of the change. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Defierred tax assets and deferred tax linbilities are off set when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax linbilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same govemning taxation Jaws.




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

k  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and balance with bank in current accounts, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the
purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents cash and short-term deposits are considered itegral part of the Group’s cash management.

L Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that the assel's camying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously
been recognised.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recovernble amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assers or groups of assets, Where the camying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is cansidered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
futire cash flows are discounted to their prasent value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used,

m. Segment reporting

An operating segment is 2 component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eamn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available,

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM is reviewing the operations of the Group as one operating segment.

n. Business Combination

Busil binations are 1 for by applying the acquisition method as at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred 16 the Company.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilites assumed in a busi bination are 1 initinlly at their fair values at the acquisition date. When the Company acquires
a business, it assess the financial assets and linbilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation, In accordance with contractual terms, economic
circumstances, and pertinent conditions as at acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
and attributable to the owners of the Company is recorded as goodwill. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is
measured at the acquisition date fair value and the amount of a non-controlling interest in the acquire. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business acquisition
are expensed as and when incurred. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in other
comprehensive income (OCI) and accumulated in cquity as capital reserve. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is aceounted for within equity.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest method.
If a business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate,

o. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit/loss attributable to the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per equity share have been computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity share holders after

giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the
periodiyear, except where the results are anti-dilutive,

p. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
Pest i Tt cash rewelprs-ne payments.-the-eash tiows-from regular revenuo genorating; invering and filaiiing activilies uf e Gruup ure sejrugmied,
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhy unless otherwive stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
q. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the I make esti and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future years. In particular, information about areas of
significant estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements are included below:

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively,

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment is included in the following notes:

(i) Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortisation is based on management estimates of the future useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Estimates may

change due to technological developments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the
depreciation and amortisation charges.

(ii) Recognition and ement of defined benefit oblig

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the valuation
and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these ption:

(iii) Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments are required to be fair valued as at the balance sheet date as provided in Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 113. Being a critical estimate, judgement is exercised
to determine the carrying values. The fair value of fi ial instr ts that are unlisted and not traded in an active market is determined at fair values assessed based on
recent transactions entered into with third parties, based on valuation done by external appraisers etc., as applicable.

(iv) Expected credit losses on financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on its financial assets measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

(v) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their

respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences could be utilized. Further details are disclosed in Note 20.

(vi) Provision and conting

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances
known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

(vii) Share based payments

Fstimating; faie valie-for share -based pavment requires dewenmination of the mast approprint valintinn madel Tha extimate alse requires detemmination of Die (sl
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the option , volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and
models used for estimating fair value for share based payments transactions are discussed in Note 27 "Employee stock option plan" (ESOP),
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(viii) Leases

In determining whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a

lease date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not _

explicitly specified in the arrangement,
r. Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. On 23 March, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 01 April, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be
recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date
for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April, 2022. The Group has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial
statements,

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April, 2022, The Group has
evaluated the amendment there is no impact on its financial statements.
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Non- Current Investments

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Asat As at Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Non Current =
Investment in Preference shares of associates at cost:
Compulsory convertible preference shares of Nextbillion Technology Private Limited - - 1,513
[31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021- Nil (01 Apri! 2020 : 4,65,000) Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each]
Total Investinents - - 1,513
Current Investment
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Investment in Mutual funds - Quoted
Measured at fair value throngh profit or loss
Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 16,313 - -
[31 March 2022: 1,451,518.55 units of Rs. 1,123.83/- each, (31 March 2021 Nil, 01 April 2020 : Nil)]
SBI Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth 463 - -
[31 March 2022: 13,368.86 units of Rs. 3,461.35/- each, (31 March 2021 and 01 April 2020 : Nil)]
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund 3992 5,000 -
[31 March 2022: 1,266,382.192 units of Rs. 315.2563/- each, (31 March 31 2021 : 1,640,873.045 units of Rs,
304.716/- each, 01 April 2020 : Nil)]
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund -~ Direct - Growth - 3,509 -
[31 March 2022 ; Nil, (31 March 2021:11,51,592. 92 of Rs. 304.74/- each and 01 April 2020 ; Nil)}
Aditya Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund - - 262
{31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 : Nil, (01 April 2020: 82,130.84 of Rs. 319.56/- each)]
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Regular - Growth - - 956
[31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 : Nil, (01 April 2020: 326,688.83 of Rs. 292,50/ each)]
Nippon India Liquid Fund Growth - - 1.219
[31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 : Nil, (01 April 2020; 25,281,065 units of Rs. 4,822.51/- each)]
Tata Money Market Fund - Regular - Growth - - 1,363
[31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 : Nil, (01 April 2020 : 43,775.86 units of Rs. 3,113,53/- each)]
Measured at amortised cost - quoted
Investment in commercial papers
Commercial paper of Piramal Enterprises Limited 7.204 - -
Total Investments 27971 8,500 3.800
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment - - -
Aguregate amount of quoted investment 27,972 8,509 3,800
Trade receivables
As at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Current
Trude receivubles
Unsecured, Considered good 1427 1,041 100
Us d, Considered doubtful 178 - -
Loss Allowunce
Unsecured, Considered good (178) - -
Net Trade receivables 1427 1,041 100

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or others officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member; except as disclosed in note 27.

Trade Receivables Ageing

Particulnrs Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 for following periods from date of tranyaction | Total
Less than 6 month | 6 months - | year | 1-2 years I 2-3 years | More than 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade recoivables — idered good 516 58 34 | 14 | 5 627
Less: Loss allownnce (178)
Add: Unbilled revenue 978
Total 1,427

Particulnrs Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good - - 847
Add: Unbilled revenue 194
Total 1,041

q Outstanding as nt 01 April 2020 for following periods from date of transaction

P Total

| T Less than 6 month | 6 months « | véar | 1-2 years 2-3 years Meore than 3 vears b
i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 95 - | 51 S | - 100
Total 100

Al . ,dﬂv‘\.
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited

Notes to the C lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othervise Mated)
7A Cush and eash equivalents

As at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Balances with banks

- in current accounts 11,253 9,855 9,131

Cash on hand - 2 1

Total Cash and cash equivalents 11.2583 9.857 9,132

7B Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at Asat Asat

Bank Deposits - Less than 12 months maturin®

31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020

45,204

85.449

k]

Toml 45204 B5.449 63
8 Other financial assets
As at Asat Asat

31 Mareh 2022 31 NE&J_I 2021 1 Anril 2020
Non-current
{Unsccured, considered good)
Rental and security deposits 266 57 25
Security deposit with exchanges/depositories 177 171 -
Bank deposits - having maturity of more than 12 months® 271,572 5.202 .
Toral 272,015 5430 5

*Fixed deposits with Banks have been lien marked with clearing corporations amounted to INR 136,982 (March 31, 2021; INR 32,342 and April 01, 2020: INR Nil). Further, fixed
deposits with Banks have been placed as collateral security against bank overdraft facility amounted to INR 12,944 (March 31, 2021: INR 6,388 and April 01, 20: Nil).

The subsidiary of the Company has been d working capital limits in excess of INR 500, in agyregate, from banks on the basis of security of bank fixed deposits. No quarterly
retumns or statements are required to be filed by subsidiary of the Company with such banks with respect to the same,

Asat Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 L April 2020

Current
(Unsecured, considercd good)

Receivable from related parties - 4 315
Advance to employees 19 3 14
Receivable from Payment aggregators 1,265 798 -
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 2,652 582 3
Rental and security deposits & - -
Toul 3502 ET ET
Total ether financial assets 275,957 5817 357
9 Other nssets
As at Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Current e B
(Unsecured, considered good)
Balance with smtutory authorities 4,363 1357 428
Prepaid expenses 341 39 3
Advances to suppliers 3203 2,158 40
Others 3 2 -
(Unsccured, considered doubtful)
Advances to suppliers 106 - -
Less: Loss Allowance on advance to suppliers {106) - -
Taotal 7,910 3.556 471




Billlonbrainy Garagye Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in INR Lokhs nnfexs othenvise stated)

10 _Shure capital

N Asat Asut Ay at
Particulury 3t Murch 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shures Amount
Authorlsed share capital
Engity Shares of INR | eoch with votlng debns 10000600 1 L2000k 1o 1 boe oo 11}
LMY 1t 200t i 100 10
1ssued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Enqulty shaves of por valug of INR I each with voting rights 992,243 1 692,951 7 346,994 4
Sharey fazued during the vear INR | cach with voting rishts 124.132 1 299,393 3 34508 3
Tatal 1116395 11 992,243 10 [ 7
HNumber of shares have been diselosed In absobute terms,
{2) Reconcillation of shares outstonding ut the beginning and at the ¢nd of the reporting period
A As it 31 March 2022 As at 31 Maorch 2031
Particulars — A
pindy Number Amiunt Numbur Atsunt
Equity sharey
At the commencement of Lhe year 492,243 iy 692,930 7
Add : lesued dutiog the vear 124,152 ] 29939 k]
At the enil of the vear 1116395 11l S92.243 I

(b) Terms/rights attuched to equity shures

The Company has only one class of cquity share. having o par value of Re.| per share. Evers member holdin
the equity shares shall be entitled to dividend as and when declared by the Company in proportion to the ni

the residual assets of the Company, The dlstribution wilt be in proportion 16 the number of cquity shares held,

& cquity shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to their share of the paid up equity share cnpital The holder of
umber of shares beld. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to share in

{c) Particulurs of Shares held by holding! ultinate hald any anl or thelr subisldlares
Asat Asat Asat
Dame Sfthesharchullcs 31 March 2022 31 Murch 202101 April 2020
Equity shivres with voting rights
Groww Inc, USA 1,116,394 992242 92,949
(d) Particulars of sharchollers halding more than 5% shares of o class of shores
—_— e e e N o e T ks uf shiOre
As at 3 hMorch 2012 As at 31 March 2021 As utl April 2024
[ T Nuniher of shires % holding  Number of shures % holding  Mumber of shares %o hiMling:
held held held
Sroww [oe USA L1163 XA 992242 99 9%, 692,949 55,
1016394 BTN 92241 99.0099% 692,949 99.9999%
(¢) Particulary of of Sharchalding
3 Avatl April 2020
ho 2 p
|N'"°' st horeholer N of Shares % ofialahare | No.ofShares | % of tatal shares
Groww Ine. USA. the Holding Com 1116394 L 9249 Y00
Harsh Jain ] ] [T 1 [N

(N The Company has not issued any shares without poyment being reecived in cash, bonus sharcs and shares bought back for the period of 5 vears immediately preceding the Balanee Sheet date or since incorporation.

114 Other eguity

Asat Asat Asat
Furticutary 31 March 202231 March 2021 1 Ajrit 2020
Retained eamings [G] (11.359) 13.437 3.504)
Sectritics preminm (i) PR 94502 IR
Total uther cquity 270,603 167.939 14589
(i} Retained eornings
At Asat Asat
Particulury 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 Apeil 2020
Openiny balance 13.437 T504) [}
Add: Profit/(foss) during the year (23.940) 16,671 3315
Addi{Less): Change in non cantrolling interest (H37) b15 3 .
Add: Remeasurement painaiflosses) on defined emploves bonefit plans (ngt of tax) {13 3 -
Clasing balance (11,359) 13,437 13:508)
{17} Securities premium
p Asat BEED Avar
Particulary 31 March222 31 March 2121 1 April 2020
Opening balance 94,5012 TR AT +.202
Add: Fremivm seceived on fssue of equity shases IHTA400 Todl 13891
Ciusing halance 281,962 94502 19,093

Nuture und purposc of reserves

B L
statement of profit and loss to retained camings.

{ih Sccuritles premium:

The cumulative gafn or loss orising from the operations which is retained by the Group is recognised and accumulated under the heading "Retained Earnings”. At the end of the vear, the profit (loss) after tax Is transferred from the

Securities premium is used 1o record (he premium on issug of shares, The reserve can be ulilsed only for Limited Ppurpose in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013,




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes tu the Consotidated finuncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amoums arc In INR Lakhys uniesy nihenls

118 Noo-contrulling intereits

staled)

Asul Avat As
Purticutars 31 March2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Opening balinee 1377 - -
Add: Pursuant (o business combination - 2507 -
Add: During the year - 40 .
Add: Profit during the ye: 43 94 -
Add: R gains/(l 1 on defined employee benefit plans (act of tax) - 1 -
AddLess: Clisnys inNC (i15) @ss) .
Closing balance 1958 2377 =
12 Trbile pravabiles
. Asal A As i
Eoriculons 31 March2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Current
Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1 4 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Payablc ©0 related Party (refer note 27) 10,698 443 65
= Pavable to other than relned Pany 112845 32571 97
Tutal trade hies 124544 33018 §a2
et irace pavahles s St i
Trade Payables Apeing
utstanding ue st 31 Mareh 2022 fur folluwing s frum date of tranyaction
Fartleilin Liss than { vear 12vean 23 vea Moze than 3 vears Toul
{1 MSME 1 - - - 1
(H) Others 117,749 546 346 i 108,642
(i) Disputed Dues- MSME - . = - -
(1v) Disputed Dues- Others - - - - -
v Unbilked 15.901
Tustal 12450
! Dty awat 31 WMareh 2024 for fallusving peclods from diite of transacting
Ll T Less than | vear 1-2 vears 23 vears Mare than 3 vears ol
() MSME P} S - . 4
(i) Others 32.652 1] 1 . 32,663
(iii) Disputed Dues- MSME . « = B 2
{iv} Disputed Daes- Others . . . & ¥
E\"I Unhﬂ% kL3
Trtual 3010
| Quistanding as ot 01 Apeil 2000 for filliwing pecinds from date uf transaethon
particuluy Less than | vear |-2 vears 23 vears More than 3 vears Lot
() MSME 5 3 T r =
(i} Others 751 ] - - 752
(i) Disputed Ducs- MSME - = - - %
(i) Disputed Dues- Other - - - - -
E %ﬁum 110 |
Tuotal 162 |
13 Provislons
Asat Asat Axat
Earticulars 31 March2022 31 March 2021 1 Apeil 2020
Nep-cursent
Provisien for gty 247 kil 36
Towl AT T 3.
- Axar Asar A
Rartienlony 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Current
Provision for gmtuity ¥ 3 -
‘rovision for ted sbaences _ b 2 -
!ﬂll! I.E T -
Total Provbions 362 98 3
14 Ouber fiahilitie
As at Asat Ax at
Easticulony 31 March222 31 March 2021 1 April 1020
Current
Statutory dues payable 233 216 63
Advances from cuslomer 1 - -
Income received in advance 17 3 .

Total niher current Iiulugliu 2.8 221 [3]




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts arc in INR Lakhs unfess otherwise stated)

15 Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 3lklnrch 2021

() Sale of services
Fees and commission income 32,584 1,292
Tech platform and support charges 236 1,452
(b) Other operating revenue
Interest income on fixed deposits with banks earmarked with stock exchange 2212 207
Total Revenue from operations 35,002 2,951
Disaggregation of Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Geographical markets

Domeastic 35,092 2,951
35,002 2,951

Timing of revenue recognition

Services tranaferred ot a point in time 35.092 2951
35,002 2,951

16 Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest income on financial assets d ot ised cost;
(i) Fixed deposits with banks from treasury funds 6,545 828
(ii) Interest on unwinding of commercial paper 204 -
(iii) Interest on inding of security deposi 1 1
Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss on
investments
(i) Realised yain on sale of mutual fund 496 80
(it} Unrealised gain on mutual fund 381 3
Interest on income tax refund - 2
Remeasurement of previously held interest in acquiree in b b - 24,489
7627 25403
17 Employee benefit expense
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Salaries, allowances, incentives and bonus 11,005 3,604
Contribution to provident and other funds 161 350
Share based payments 11,256 300
Staff welfare expenses 330 54
Gratuity 147 33
22,989 4,061

18 Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the yenr ended
31 March 2021

Interest on lense liabilities
Interest on overdrafl facility

3

3
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit nnd Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othervise stated)

19

20

Depreciation and amorti:

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021 __

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 294 12
Depreciation on right of use assets 10 15
304 127
Other expenses
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Marketing and b 7 p 25452 5,004
Software, server and technology exp 8364 1,733
Transaction and other related charges 7.638 380
Professional and consulting charges 905 259
Rent and maintenance 227 82
Travelling and conveyance expenses 18 2
Communication expenses 26 13
Rates and taxes 174 37
Payments to auditors
- Statutory audit 16 7
- Tax audit 4 1
Bank charges 8 9
Provision for loss allowance 140 -
Director's sitting fee 10 -
Foreign exchange losses (net) 20 8
Miscellaneous expenses 68 11

43.070 7,546




Bllllonhirainy Guruge Ventures Private Limited
Natey tn the Consolliated finuncial stutements for the yeur endel 31 Murch 21122

it aonnis are in INR Lakhy iitess othereise stated)
21 Income Tuxes

A. Amount recognlsed n profit or bew statement

For the year ended

For the yeur ended

31 Blurch 3033 31 Murch 3031

Cuarpent Lax

() for current Year pLLY 3

1} sulating tw carlicr Years 1 -
Jutal cureent tag (iRl 259 13
Deferred tax
In it ool cimrenl period (a5 CELIN
Total deferred tay expenne 35 {8,
Tnciine tas expenve reparied I3 the statument of Prafit and Lus F7] T8

B. Recunciliatlon of cffective tax rate

For the year ended

For the year ended

Partiiers 31 March 1022 38 Mupeh 2021
Profiti{Lnes) befie shiare of profit in equin scasmiel invedees aml tx (237} 1,619
Tux ot Indion tox rate of 25, 4% (31 Murel 202) : 25, 168%) (5951) 4,163
Effect of
Lussest for which deferred Lox iv not recognised 6,187 (K20
Tax on income ant subject to tax - (6.163)
Tax vn expense ot tax deductible 3 1
Tax recugmiscd on wiutilised tax loxves . an
Cthers 18 qn
Tutal fox expense 284 165
L Curnmt tay
Asat Anot As ot
Farticytacy 31 March 2022 fareh 302 il 2020
Currenl WX nxsel (el LIz Ho u
Currant tas lighility (nety 2 2 .
D. Deferred Tax
Asat Asac Axor
fartioulass 31 March 3123 31 March 2021 1 Al 2030
Diefarred tax Nakilithe

Property plont & Equipment

Unrealised gain on securities carried at fair volus through protit or loss / ether comprehensive income Fil - -
Totul deferred tax lahllites 23 - 1
Deferred tax ussets
Property plant & Equipmient s 3 -
Disallowance of Expenses T 1} -
On carry torword of losses 201 201 -
Tl deferred fux nasety a1 FTH -
Net deferred tax labilitles/ (Aveet) 280 pit] iy
Deferred tax st/ {liahifithe);
Muvement nf deferred fax ssehs / linbMities presented In the balance sheet
Axat Pursuant tolariness  Regngnived in Asut
Fiur the year ended 31 March 122 01 Apedd 2028 combinstin prmfit ap fuas Reengnlsel In OC1 31 March 2022
Deferred tax lahility st
Unrenlised gain on securities carried ol
fuir volue through protit or low / other comprehensive income . - 123 . (23
Gross deferred tux Habllities . 5 a3 5 )
Deferred tux nssets on:
Propecty plant & Equipmient 3 - ) - -
Disallowanew ol Expenset 1n - 60 - n
On curry forwond of losves 2m 5 . - 201
L daterrend tax awsts 215 . E2 - Fri]
Nat il tay Hahifities) fussets) 215 - 15 - 250
Anut Pursusnt ts busdnens  Reengnived in Axat

Fur the year ended 31 March 2021

Recrgnised in OCI

Ui 12030 cnmhinutiog rufit e i 31 March 221
Deforred tox Iahilicy wn:
Property plont & Eynipment I - in - -
Gruss deferred s lahllitfes 1 ., LL}] = =
Diferred tax ausets wn:
Properyy plont & Equipment - H [} -
Disallovance of Expenses - 7 4 -
C csrry thrwmnd of Juees . 124 i} -
G defereed tuy wasts - 137 ™ -
Nt dufurred tas Hahllithes! (asets) il 137 _ =

Eo Tad lunest aansfodd B e d

Partheutsrs

0I5 Varioos
365 Tuadelinite Peivul

Toacs fomses (bvpemus fomeed)
Vit Bivenies (1mnabvschend eprevintion)

As ot March 31, 2022 A wt March 31, 2021
Grvas Ammunt _Expiry Date Gruss Amnunt Expiry Date Ginexs Atant Explry Dute

13486 Varimu

AsutApel UL, 2000 _

14 Inadefimite Parinl 59

3412 Variuis

Tndelinite Perind

F. Unrecognised deferred tux assets

Purtlculurs As at March 31, 1022 At M-lr(h!lglﬂel An st Aprll D1, 2020
Grues Amaunt  Unrecugaland  Grow Amnunt Unrecognived  Grass Aemnust Unrecomised tax
t 5t fax ufTect aileet
Tt lisses [bassimess o) s CE 12,485 ENEE) EETH LI
T fusses (unhaishe depeectatiom) s6$ 142 190 L I3
al Welirral tax wisets 7.5m1 4,458 12,674 3198 3471 T4

Note: Pending reasinuble certalnty and as u matter of prudence, deferred tax uvset has not heen recopnised
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Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the C lidated fi il sta for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othervise stated)
22 Employee benefit obligations
Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution are made to Provident fund in tndia for employees. The contributions are made to registered Provident fund administered by the Govemnment, The expenses recognised
during the period townrds defined contribution plan is INR 157 for the year ended March 31, 2022 (INR 37 for the year ended March 31, 2021).

Defined benefit plans

The Group provides for gratity for employees in Tudin as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity, The amount of gratity payable on reti termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the
number of years of service.

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 As at 01 April 2020

Current Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current

Compensated absences 6 - 2 - - -

Gratuity 9 247 5 91 . 36

Total employee benefit obligations 15 __ 247 7 91 - 36
Defined benfit plans

@ R iliation of opening and closing bal. of Defined Benefit Obligation
" Asat As at

Description March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Defined Benefit Obligation (DBQO) at beginning of year 9% 36
Addition pursuant to business combination - 14
Current service cost 136 49
Interest cost 11 4
Actuarial loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income
a) changes in demographi ption - -
b) ch in financial pti (8) m
c) experience adjustments 21 6)
Benefits paid - =

Defined Benefit Obligation (DB 0) at year end 256 96

(ii) Expenses recognised during the year

Description For theyear ended  For the year ended
Current service cost 136 49
Interest cost 11 4
Expenses recopnised in Profitand loss 147 53

(iii) Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

fern For the year ended  For the year ended
Desgition March 31,2022 Mareh 31,2021
Acturial Gains/ (Losses) on obligation for the period (13) 7

Net Incame / (Expense) for the period recognised in OCI (13) 7




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounss are in INR Lakhs unless othenvise stared)

(iv) Acturial assumptions

Gratuity as on March 31

Description 2022 2021
, India Assured Lives  India Assured Lives

Mortality Table (LIC) Mortality 2012-14  Mortality 2012-14

Discount rate (p.a) 7.02%-7.03% 6.62% - 6,66%

Attrition Rate 18.00% 18.00%

Rate of escalation in salary (p.a) 11.00% 11.00%

Retirement age 60 Years 60 Years

(vi) Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March31.2022 ___ March 31,2021

Discount rate : +1% (17 M
Discountrate : -1% 20 3
Salary escalation rate : +1% 17 7
Salary escalation rate : -1% (15) 9
Attrition rate: +1% ®) @
Attrition rate: 1% 10 4

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while hoiding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the

assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial ptions the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligati leulated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in
the balance sheet,

The Mortality does not have a significant impact on the Liability , hence are not considered a significant actuarial assumption for the purpose of Sensitivity analysis
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period,

The expected future contribution and estimated future benefit payments from the fund are as follows

Particulars Gratuity
Expected contribution to the fund during the year ending March 31, 2022 Unfunded
Estimated benefit payments from the fund - Time period (in years)

Within 1 year 0-10
2 -5 years 19-89
6 -10 years 29-126
11-15 years 17-75

Above 15 year 20-90




Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the C. li 1 fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs unless othenvise stated)

23 Ind AS 101 First Time Adoption of Indian A ing Standards

Transition to Ind AS

For reporting periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2021, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with Indian GAAP. The Group has
prepared its financial statements in accordance with Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and as notified
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs with the transition date being April 1, 2020, The impact of transition has been provided in the Opening Reserves as at April 1, 2020,

In preparing these financial statements, the Group has opted to avail the choices available for certain transitional provisions within Ind AS 101, 'First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards’, which offers exemption from applying specified Ind AS retrospectively. The most significant of these provisions are in the following areas:

Mandatory exception:

Estimates:
As per Ind AS 101, an entity's ¢stimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS at the end of the parative period p d in the entity's first Ind AS
financial statements, as the case may be, should be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with the previous GAAP unless there is objective evidence

that those estimates were in error, However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any diffe in g p

As per Ind AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under previous GAAP, those estimates should be made to
reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at the end of the comparative period (for presenting comparative

information as per Ind AS).

The Group's estimates under Ind AS are consistent with the above requi . Key idered in preparation of the standalone financial that were not
required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Determination of the di d value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model
- Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL

Classification, measurement and impairment of financial assefs
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further, the standard

permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is
impracticable.

Accordingly, the Group has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of the financial
assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively.

Optional exemptions:
L Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as measured as per the previous GAAP and vsed
that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition,

ii. Classification and ement of fi ial assets

At the transition date, the Group assessed the conditions for classification of financial assets and accordingly classified its financial assets at either amortised cost, fair value

gh other hensive income or fair value through profit and loss account, as appropriate, under the provisions of Ind AS 109, ‘Financial Instruments’.

iii. De-recognition of financial assets

The Group has elected to not recognise financial assets or fi ial Yiabilities which were de-recognised in accordance with its previous GAAP as a result of transactions that
occurred before the transition date,

iv. Leases

The Group has availed the exemption to assess whether an arrang ins a lease based on facts and circumstances existing on date of transition to Ind AS. For
transition, the Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within 12 months from the date of transition by class of asset and
leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis,
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Billionbrains Gnrage Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated fi ial for the year ended 31 Mnrch 2022

(Al amaunis are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
23 Ind AS 101 First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards (Continued)

Reconciliation of net worth and net income between Indian GAAP and Ind AS financial statements.

A. Reconciliation of sharcholders® equity as per Indian GAAP and Ind AS financinl statements

Not Asat Asat
O 3istMarch2021  1st April 2020

Equity under previous GAAP {14,261) (3,516)
Share based payment e 2,788 (65)
Gratuity expense d 67 (36)
Net gain on fair value changes [ 3 102
Fair value gain on previously held equity interest f 24489 -
Change in non controllinyg interest f 265 -
Total prehensive income attributable to non controlling interest f (96) -
Share of profit of equity accounted investees f 81 -
Others ab 100 10
Equity as per Ind AS 13,437 (3,504)
B. Reconcilintion of net profit as per Indian GAAP and Ind AS financial statements

: For the year ended

Farticulars 31 March 2021

Net loss under previous GAAP (10,669)
Net gain on fair value changes ¢ (99)
Share based payment e 2,853
Gratuity expense d 9
Fair value ain on previously held equity interest f 24,489
Share of profit of equity accounted investees f 81
Others ab 13
Profit for the year under Ind AS 16,765
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans d
Other comprehensive income for the yeor under Ind AS 7
Net income under Ind AS 16,772
C. Reconciliation of Statement of Cash flows
There were no material diffe b the S of Cash Flows presented under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP,
Notes to reconciliation
a. Accounting of leases
Under previous GAAP, lease pay under an operating lease are recognised as an exp in the of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the

lease term, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the users benefit, Ind AS 116 Leases' requires the Company to recognise the
right-of-use asset and correspondiny lease liabilities at transition date. The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 from April 01, 2020 using the modified retrospective
approach and recognised right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the adjusted lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated as per the requirements of Ind AS
16, Property, plant and equipment', Interest is recognised on the remaining balance of the lease liabilities during the lease term and disclosed under finance costs.

b. Amortisation of security deposits
As per Ind AS 109, lonys term security deposits are recognised at amortised cost and related interest income have also been recognised.

c. Net gain / loss on fair value changes
Under Previous GAAP, investment in mutual funds was carried at lower of cost or net realisable value. Under Ind AS, these investments are measured at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL).

d. Remensurement of net defined benefit linbility
Under Ind AS, re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and fosses are wnised in other prehensive income. Under
previous GAAP, the Group has recognised actuariol goins and losses in profit or loss.

e. Shore based payments

Under Previous GAAP, the Group followed intrinsic value method for ing comp i P of employee stock options. Under Ind AS, in case of equity
settled share based pay tr ions with employees, the fair value as on the grant date should be esti d and recognised as an exp over the vesting
pmiud,

I. Business Combination

Under Ind AS 103, in a busi binati hieved in stages, the acquirer shall ¢ its previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date
fair value and recognise the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss, Under previous GAAP, there was no fair value adjustment prescribed. Also, Ind AS 103
allows the acquirer to a trolling interest in the acquiree at its fair value or at book value of the net assets acquired at the acquisition date. The

Company has adopted to recognise non-controlling interest at its share of book value of the net assets acquired.
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Notes to the C: lidated fi ial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounis are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
24 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table shows the camrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2022

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars FVIPL  Amortised costs Tofal carrying Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
amount
Financial assets
Investments 20,768 7,204 27,972 20,768 - - 20,768
Trade receivables - 1,427 1,427 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 11,253 11,253 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 45,204 45,204 - - - -
Other financial assets = 275.957 275.957 - = - -
20,768 341,045 361,813 20,768 - - 20,768
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 124,544 124,544 - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - - - -
- 124,544 124,544 - - - -
As at 31 March 2020
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars DgELa Aoty L b Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
amount
“Financial assets
Investments 8,509 - 8,509 8,509 - - 8,509
Trade receivables - 1,041 1,041 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 9,857 9,857 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 85,449 85,449 - - -
Other financial assets - 6.817 6,817 - - .
8.509 103,164 111,673 8,509 - - 8.509
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - 33,018 35,018 - - - -
Lease liability - 9 9
- - 33.027 33,027 - - - -
As at 01 April 2020
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars EVIELRy e riBed s BRI Total o rying Levell1 Level2 Level 3 Total
amount__
Financial assets
Investments (excluding associate)* 3,800 - 3,800 3,800 - - 3,800
Trade receivables - 100 100 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 9,132 9,132 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 63 63 - - - -
Other financial assets - 357 357 - = - -
3,800 9,652 13,452 3.800 - - 3,800
Financial liabilities
Trudy puyubles . o2 02 - - = -
- 862 862 - - - -

* nvestment in associate is measured at cost

The Group does not have any financial asset or liabilities measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group has not separately disclosed the fair values for financial assets and liabilities other then investments, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of
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Notes to the C; lidated fi ial for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amaounts are in INR Lakhs unfess otherwise stated)

B Measurement of fair values
Valuation technique used to determine fair values:
cific valuation technique to value fi ial instruments like:
i. Use of quoted market prices for financial instruments traded in active markets,
ii. For other financial instruments - discounted cash flow analysis.

Q 7

C Fi ial risk g
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instrments:
(i) Credit risk;
(if) Liquidity risk; and
(iii) Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Compeny's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the C pany’s risk fr k. The Company’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities, The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Group's receivables from customers. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients, including trade receivable. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets, The
Group assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into nccount their financial position, past experience and other factors,

The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on trade receivables for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was INR 178 and INR Nil respectively. The reconciliation of
allowance for doubtful trade receivables is as follows:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Changes during the year 178 -
Bad Debts written off - -
Balance at the end of the year 178 -

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally invests in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit
rating agencies.

x \
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Notes to the C: lidated fi inl for the year ended 31 March 2022

(ANl aonounts are in INR tnless othervise stated)
24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidiry risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meetiny the obligations associated with its financia! liabilities that nre settled by delivering cash or another financial aster. The Group's

approach to mannging liquidity is to ensure, os far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed canditions, without incurring
umacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

The Group's principal sources of liquidity are cash ond cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generated from operations The Group has manayed its liquity and working copital requirements through
cash d from and through itten short term b inys. The Group has sufficient short term fund based lines, which provides healthy liquidity and these carry highest credit quality
rating from reputed credit rating agency, hence no liquidity risk is perceived,

i

The following are the init I ities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and d, and include esti d interest pay and exclude the impact

of netting agreements.

Contractunl gash fows

31 March 2022 Carrying amount 6 months orless Duein6-12 Duein I-2year Due Mare than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial linbilities
Trmade Em'h’ﬂ 124,544 124,544 - - -
124,544 I_Z‘:‘-M - - -
Contractunl cash flows
31 March 2021 Carrying amount 6 monthsorless Duein6-12 Duein 1-2year Due More than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial Hnbilities
Trade payables 33,014 33,014 - - -
Lease Linhiliy 9 9 - - <
33,013 33,023 - = -
Contractual cash flows
1 April 2020 Carrying amount 6 monthsorless Duein6-12 Dueinl-2 year Due More than
months 2 years
Non-derivative financial Uabilities
Trade pavahles 862 862 - = -
s 6z - - -
iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of thrae types of risks: interest mte risk,
prica risk and y risk. Finoneinl i affected by market risk includes trade receivable/payable, other financial assets and liobilities. The Group is not exposed to any significant market risks,
Interest rate risk

Interest rate rigk is the risk that the fair value or fture cash fows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The interest rafe risk can also impact the provision for
retiral benefits. The Group generally utilises fixed rate borrowings and therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the casrying amaunt nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change
in the market interest rates. The Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk ns a1 the respective reporting dates.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will Auctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Exposures can arise on account of the various assets and

linbilities which are d i din izs other than Indian Rupes. . '

The following toble shows foreign currency exposures in USD on financial instruments at the end of the reporting period:

i} Foreign Currency Exposure:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
USD USD

Financial assets —

Advance to suppliers (Rs.) 28 29

Financial Liabilities

Trade Payable(Rs ) 11,851 445

Net Total {11,823) (416)

ii) Foreign Currency Sensitivity:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
USD Usb

1% Depreciation in INR

Impact on P&L 118 4

Particulars 31 Mnﬁzozl 31 March 2021
Usp Usp

1% Aperecintion in INR.

Impact on P&L {118} (4)

v. Capital Mapnagement
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base 50 as to maintain imvestor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future developmant of the business, The Group monitors the return on
capital and its objective when managiny; capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximizs shareholder value,
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(Al amounts are in INR unless othervise stated)

25 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulnrs Asat As at

Asat
1 April 2020

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
a) Contingunt Lizhilities - -
b) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for : - -
¢) Claims against the Company not acknowledged ns debts - -
The Company did not have any long term contracts in¢luding derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

26 Eamings per share (EPS)

The folloving table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted enrmings per share:

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2022

3t March 2021

Eurnings
Loss for the year

10 equity sh for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (In INR Lakhs) (23.901)

Shares
Weighted average number of equity shares outstandiny; during the year for calculation of basic EPS (In Lakhs) 10

Effect of dilutive potential equity shares -

16,765

Weighted average number of equity shares far calculation of diluted EPS {in Lakhs) 10

Basic samings per share ILEE.IH)

1,116.05

Diluted eumlnE per share (2,252.04)

2,1 lG,E.

Nominal value per share 1

27 Related party disclosures
As per Indian Accounting Standard on related party disclosures (Ind AS 24), the names of the related parties of the Company are as follows:

A Names of related parties and description of relationship

Name Type
Groww Inc Holding company
Nextbillion Technoloyy Private Limited Associate upto November 20,2020
Finvantage Investment Adviser Private Limited Enterprises having key manayement personnel in common
Lalit Keshre Key management p |
Huorsh Jain Key management personnel
Meeraj Singh K ment el of holding company
Ishan Bansal ment nnel of holding co
B The fallawi ions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:
For the year ended  For the year ended
Nature of Transaction Related Party 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Groww Inc I in Equity [ including ities premi 187,461 76412
Share based payments 11,256 300
Finvantage Investment Adviser Private Limited Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company - 7
Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party (0] 0)
Advances recovered 4 -
Lalit Keshre Purchase of Equity Instruments of Groww Pay Serivce Private 1 -
limited
Purchase of Equity Instruments of Nexibillion Technology 250 -
Private Limited
Directors Remuneration* 143 34
Harsh Jain Purchase of Equity Instruments of Groww Pay Serivce Private 1 -
limited
Purchase of Equity Instruments of Nextbillion Technology 400 -
Private Limited
Neeraj Singh Purchase of Equity Instruments of Nextbillion Technology 325 -
Private Limited
Remuneration® 143 a5
Ishan Bansal Purchase of Equity Instruments of Nextbillion Technoloyy 325 -
Private Limited
*The amount does not include provision for gratuity as the same is determined for the Company as whole based on actuarial valuation
D.  Outstanding balances
Particulars Related Party asiat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Grovay Inc, Trade Payable (11,698} (443)
Trade receivables 6 -
4

Finvantage Investment Adviser Private Limited Other financial assets -
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(ANl amounts are in INR unless otherwise stated)

28 Share Based Payments

All the Group's employees or consultants approved by the Board, are eligible for being considered for the grant of stock options under Groww Inc 2017 Stock Incentive Plan {"GSIP

2017") administered by the Holding Company.

Stock options granted under GSIP 2017 would vest based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the respective Stock option Grant Notice, The holding company has issued fully
vested stock options and stock options with a vesting period of 48 months with a cliff of 12 months in graded manner. Veesting of options would be subject to continued emplayment with
a Group. The specific veating schedule and litions subject to which vesting would take plase would be outlined in the document given to the option grantee at the time of grant of

options. The excercise price of the options granted ranges betwesn USD 0.02 - USD 37.01.

For stock options issued under GSIP 2017, the weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was $19.69 (March 31, 2021; $2.07). As at March 31, 2022, the weighted
average contractual remaining life of options is 1.89 years,

Movement of share options during the financial year:

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Qutstanding as at the beginning of the year 1.817.114 1.393.411 1,111,246
- Granted 652.715 487811 301,332
- Repurchased (39.834) (28.606) (11.673)
- Forfeited (23,256) (35,302) (7,494}
Outstanding s at the end of the year 2,406,739 1.817.114 1,393,411
Vested as at the yeor end 1.657.697 T23.749 400,955

Fair value of stock options granted

The fair value of the stock options yranted is estimated at the grant date using arm's length price of the stock options computed based on the Black-Scholes model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the stock options were granted. The inputs used to measure fair values of options granted on the grant date were as follows:

The following table lists the inputs to the option pricing models for the year ended

| March 31, 2022 | March 31,2021 March 31. 2020
Dividend yield (% p.a) 0%] 0% 0%
ed volotility (% p.a) 36%| 33%) 34%
Risk-free interest rate (% pia.) _0.48%) 0.22% 0.33%
E: ted life of aption (years) 2 4 4
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29 Leases

a)

A conract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Group as a lessee

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for premises, The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract.
To assess whetlier a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an
identified asset (i) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iti) the Group has the
right to direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a corresponding lease Lability for all lease arangements
in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.

For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. The group has not recognised any short term leases.

Certain lease arangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these
options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid lease plus any initial
direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the date on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost ot the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
mcremental borrowing rate of the Group. Lease liabilities are ed with a corresponding adj to the related right of use asset if the Group
its on whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

5

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments of INR 8 Lakhs (March 31, 2021; INR 15 Lakhs)
have been classificd as cash flow generated from financing activity.

Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period by class

3 Leasehold
Particulars Property
Balance as on 1st April 2021 10
Additions i
Deletions p
Depreciation (10}
Balance as on 31st March 2022 E
Previous Year

g Leasehold
Particulars Property.
Balance as on st April 2020 -
Additions =
Additions pursuant to business combination 25
Deletions .
Depreciation {15)
Balance as on 315t March 2021 10

Previous Year =
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29 Leases (Continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2022

b) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

At the commencement of the year 9 -
Additions . -
Additions pursuant to business combination - 23
Accretion of interest ' -
P 2] (14)
At the end of the year - 9
Current 5 9
Non-Current - i
b) Maturity analysis of lease liabilites
. 5 . As at Asat
tu 5
Maturity analysis - Contractual undiscounted cash flows 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Less than one year 16 43
One to five years - 16
More than five years = a
Total undiscounted lease linbilities at 31 March 2022 16 59
Lease liabilities included in the Balance sheet at 31 March 2022 - 9
Current - 9
Non-=current = -
¢) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Tnterest on lease habilities - 1
Lease payments not included in lease liabilities 86 58
d)y A ts recognised in the of cash flows
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Total cash outflow for leases 9 14
30 The fi ial are pr d in INR Lakhs (rounded off). Those items which are required to be disclosed and which were not presented in financial

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

statements due to rounding off to the nearest INR Lakhs are given below in INR:

Particnlars Note As at/ for the year ended

L March 31. 2022 |March 31, 2021 April 01, 2020
Office equipment Additions pursuant to business combination 3A - 25,499 -
Furnitures Additions pursuant to busi combination 3 - 38,000 -
Fumnitures Additions 3A 5,381 - -
Fumnitures depreciation 3A 47,293 - -
Network Equipments Accumulated deprecint 3A 49,371 35293 -
Network Equipments depreciation 3A 14,078 35,293 -
Other current assets 9 - - 33,200
Interest on income tax refund 16 3,564 - -
Tnterest on leage liabilities 18 13,851 - .
Deferred tax assels ou property plant wnd equipment 21 - 22,495 8.734
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31 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued on Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in
their pond with its the E M dum Number as all | after filing of the M Jum. Accordingly, the discl in respect of the amounts payable

to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 has been made in the A inl based on infi d and available with the i pany, Furtlier, in management’s view, the impact
of interest, if any, that may be payablein d with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('the Act’) 15 not expected to be material,
Particulars As at Asat Asat

’ 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

The principal amount and interest due thereon remaininy unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year,

- Principal amount 1 4 3
- Interest due thereon - = =
The amount of interest paid by the company along with the payment mede to the supplier beyond the appointed day during

the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest under this Act - - -

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accountiny year, o 5 =

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, till actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure,

Total outstandiny prinsipal dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises included in Trade Payables (Note 12) 1 4 -

32 Segment reporting
The Group's operations predominantly relate to equity broking, mutual fund and its refated activities, The Chief' Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the operations of the Group as
one operating segment since the other businesses are only in their initial stages of operations. Hence no scparate segment information has been furnished herewith, The Company operates in

one geographic segment namely "within Indin" and hence no separate information for g phic sey wise discl is required.

33 The Subsidiary of Company has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement to acquire the Mutual Fund Busi of Indiabulls Asset Manag; Company Limited (IAMCL), by way of
acquisition of 100% equity stake in IAMCL and Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited (ITCL), on May 10, 2021 at an nggregate purchase consideration of INR 17,500,

The Subsidiary of Company has filed an application, with SEBI sacking approval for change in control of IAMCL and ITCL and to the Competition Commission of India for the acquisition
of IAMCL and ITCL. The Company has received the approval from Competition Commission of India for the said acquisition on September 9, 2021, The approval from SEBI for Change in
Control is awaited.

34 Business Combinations

Duriny the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company achieved control aver Nextbillion Technology Private Limited w.e.f November 20, 2020. Nextbillion Technology Private Limited is a
registered Stock Broker and Depository participant under Securities and Exchange Board of India, primarily engaged in the business of Stock broking services (including mutual fund) and
Depository services.

Porticulurs Amount Amount

Assels takien over

Cash & Cazh Equivalents 22,338

Trade Receivables 6

Other Financial Assets 320

Current tax assets (net) 13

Deferred tax assets (net) 137

Property, plant and equipment 12

Right-of-use assets 25 22,851
Liabilities taken over

Trade payables 16,925

Lease Liability 23

Provisions 15

Other non-financial liabilities 5 16,968
Total identifiable net assets at fair value as at 5,883
November 20, 2020 (A)

Non - Controlling interest measured at proportionate share in the 2,507

recogpised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets (B)

[Fair value of consideration (C) 31,060

LGoodwiIl =(C) +(B) - (A) z-/ﬂ‘

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that the implied foir value of goodwill is less than its carrying amount, Goodwill has been
tested for impairment based on the cash flow forecasts of the related CGU and the recoverable amounts of these CGUs exceeded their carrying amounts.
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35 Non controlling Interest

Set out below is summarised financial information for subsidiary Nextbillion Technology Private Limited that has non-controlling interest to the group. The
amount disclosed are before intercompany elimination.

Summarised balance sheet March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ownership interest held by non controlling interest 3.79% 9.15%
Financial assets 179,193 56,886
Financial liabilities (127,360) (31,169)
Non financial assets 786 351
Non financial liabilities (958) (86)
Net assets 51,661 25,981
Non-controlling interest 1.958 2.377
Summarised statement of profit or loss March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue 34,826 4,047
Profit for the year 681 261
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 1) 4
Total comprehensive income 680 265
Total comprehensive income allocated to non controlling interest 45 96
Summarised statement of cash flow March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash flow from operating activities (24,580) (17,187)
Cash flow from investing activities 1,069 (4,969)
Cash flow from financing activities 24,988 24,951
Net Increase/(decrease! in cash and cash equivalents 1,478 2,795

36 Additional information pursuant to requirement of Schedule IIT To The Companies Act, 2013 under general instructions for preparation of

Consolidated Financial Statements

Name of the entity Net Assets, i.e., total assets Share in profit or loss Share in other Share in total
minus total liabilities comprehensive income comprehensive income
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated
net assets profit or loss profit or loss profit or loss
Billionbrains Garage Ventures 91% 246,517 101% (24,090) 92% (12) 101%| (24,102)
Private Limited
Subsidiaries
Nextbillion Technology Private 19% 51,661 -3%| 681 4% 6)) 3% 680
Limited
Neobillion Fintech  Private 2% 4,952 0% (51) 0% - 0% (51
Limited
Groww Pay Service Private 1% 2,668 1% (332) 0% - 1% (332)
Limited
Groww Serv Private Limited 0% 226 0% 3) 0% - 0%| 3)
(Formerly known as|
Billionbrains Capital Private
Limited)
Billionblocks Finserv Private 0% 44 0% - 7(108) 0% - 0% (106)
Limited
Subtotal 113% 306,064 100% (23,901) 96% (13) 100% (23,914)
Adjustments arising out o -12% (33,493) 0% - 0% - 0% -
consolidation
Less: Non-controlling interests -1% (1,958) 0% (45)] 0%| - 0% (45)
Total 100%, 270,613 100% (23,946) 96% (13) 100% (23.959)
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37 Mo funds have been advanced or loaned ot invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to
or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“lntermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise; that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behall' of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Group lhas not received any fund from any
parties (funding party) with the understanding that the Group shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or
hehalf of the Group ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any gurantee, seeurity or the like on Lelialf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries.

As per our report of even date

for BSRand Co for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited %
Firm Registran o 128510W CIN: UT2900KA2018FTC109343 ()‘)\J-/
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